T

bl

Brighton & Hove
City Council

Ing Panel

icensing

(Non Licensing Act 2003 Functions)

L

Democratic Services

Title: Licensing Panel (Non Licensing Act 2003
Functions)

Date: 19 December 2014

Time: 10.00am

Venue Committee Room 1, Brighton Town Hall

Members: | Councillors:
Cobb, Marsh and Simson

Contact: Ross Keatley

Acting Democratic Services Manager
01273 29-1064
ross.keatley@brighton-hove.gov.uk

The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users,
including lifts and toilets

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter
and infra red hearing aids are available for use
during the meeting. If you require any further
information or assistance, please contact the
receptionist on arrival.

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by
the nearest available exit. You will be directed to
the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital that you
follow their instructions:

*  You should proceed calmly; do not run and do
not use the lifts;

* Do not stop to collect personal belongings;

* Once you are outside, please do not wait
immediately next to the building, but move
some distance away and await further
instructions; and

* Do not re-enter the building until told that it is
safe to do so.

democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk




Democratic Services: Meeting Layout

Member Chair Member
Lawyer
Responsible
Authorities
Dechratic Responsible
Ser\{lces Authorities
Officer
Licensing Residents
Officer Representative
Residents
Representative
Applicant Applicant

Public Seating

Press




LICENSING PANEL (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS)

Part One

AGENDA

Page

9

TO APPOINT A CHAIR FOR THE MEETING

10 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

11

(a) Declaration of Substitutes: Where Councillors are unable to attend a
meeting, a substitute Member from the Licensing Committee may
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting.

(b) Declarations of Interest:

(@)
(b)
(c)

Disclosable pecuniary interests not registered on the register of
interests;

Any other interests required to be registered under the local
code;

Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on the
matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in
the ward/s affected by the decision.

In each case, you need to declare

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

the item on the agenda the interest relates to;

the nature of the interest; and

whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other
interest.

If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee lawyer
or administrator preferably before the meeting.

(c) Exclusion of Press and Public: To consider whether, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration.

NOTE: Any item appearing in Part Two of the Agenda states in its
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the

public.

A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls.

APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE- UNDER THE
GAMBLING ACT 2005, METROBET BOOKMAKERS LTD, 56
BOUNDARY ROAD, HOVE

Report of the Head of Regulatory Services (copy attached).
Ward Affected: Wish

1-32



LICENSING PANEL (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS)

12 APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCES -UNDER THE 33 -118

GAMBLING ACT 2005, UNITS 1 -4 REGENCY ARCADE, 63-64 WEST
STREET, BRIGHTON

Report of the Head of Regulatory Services (Copy attached)

Contact Officer: Sarah Cornell Tel: 29-5801
Ward Affected: Regency

NOTE: There may be more than one item on this agenda, and as such
the item you are interested in may not be heard until later in
the day. However, the Chairman reserves the right to alter the

running order of the agenda at the start of the meeting without
prior notice.

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.

Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date.

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on
disc, or translated into any other language as requested.

For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Ross Keatley, (01273
29-1064, email ross.keatley@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Date of Publication - Thursday, 11 December 2014




Agenda Item 11

Licensing Panel Brighton & Hove City Council
(Gambling Act 2005 Functions)

Subject: Application for Review of a Premises Licence under
the Gambling Act 2005

Premises: Metrobet Bookmakers Limited, 56 Boundary Road
Hove, BN3 5TD

Applicant: Mark Savage-Brookes, Licensing Officer,

Environmental Health & Licensing, Regulatory
Services, Public Health, Brighton & Hove City Council

Date of Meeting: 19" December 2014

Report of: Head of Regulatory Services

Contact Officer: Name: Sarah Cornell Tel: (01273) 295801
E-mail: Sarah.cornell@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk

Wards Affected: Wish Ward

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT:

1.1 To determine an application for Review of a Gambling Premises Licence
(Betting (Other)) under the Gambling Act 2005 for Metrobet.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 That the Panel determine the review of the premises licence for premises
known as Metrobet.

3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION & CONSULTATION

3.1 An application was received from Mark Savage-Brookes, Licensing Officer, to
review the licence granted to the premises known as Metrobet, 56 Boundary
Road, Hove, BN3 5TD. Appendix A

3.2 Existing licence attached at Appendix B.

3.3 The grounds for the review relate to the following Licensing objective:

» Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed
or exploited by gambling (it should be noted that the requirement in



relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or
exploited by gambling).

3.4 In exercising its function under the Gambling Act 2005 the Licensing Authority
must aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as the Authority
think it:

a) In accordance with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the

Gambling Commission,

b) In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling

Commission,

c) Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives, and

d) In accordance with the Authority’s Licensing Policy.

3.5 At this hearing the licensing authority must:

« Consider the application made in accordance with Section 200

» Consider any relevant representations

* As a result of a review of a premises licence under section 201 a
licensing authority may—

(a) revoke the licence;

(b) suspend the licence for a specified period not exceeding three
months;

(c) exclude a condition attached to the licence under section 168 or
remove or amend an exclusion;

(d) add, remove or amend a condition under section 169.

Representations received

3.6 Details of the representations made are notified to applicants on receipt by
the Licensing Authority using a pro-forma.

3.7 One representation was received. It was received from the Gambling
Commission (Appendix C).

3.8 Representation received had concerns relating to:

* Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed
or exploited by gambling (it should be noted that the requirement in
relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or
exploited by gambling).

4. CONSULTATION

Commentary on gambling policy

4.1 The following extracts from Brighton & Hove City Council Statement of
Gambling Policy are considered relevant to this application and numbered as they

appear in the policy:

1. Introduction



1.2 The gambling objectives are:-

* Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime.

» Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way,

» Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed
or exploited by.

1.5 This policy will come into force on 1 January 2013 by resolution of Full
Council in December 2012 and will be reviewed and published at least every three
years.

The review process will be undertaken using the same principles as the initial
consultation process. The policy will also be under review in the interim periods;
any revisions required by either process will also be the subject of consultation. It
is also subject to guidance issued by the Government including any issued after
the date of publication of this Statement.

1.13 Human Rights

In considering applications, and taking enforcement action, licensing authorities
are subject to The Human Rights Act and in particular the following relevant
provisions of the European Convention on Human Rights:-

. Article 1, Protocol 1 - peaceful enjoyment of possessions. A licence is
considered a possession in law and people should not be deprived of
their possessions except in the public interest.

. Article 6 - right to a fair hearing.

. Article 8 - respect for private and family life. In particular, removal or
restriction of a licence may affect a person’s private life; and
. Article 10 — right to freedom of expression.

Licensing Authorities should be aware that moral objections to gambling are not a
valid reason to reject applications for premises licences. This is because such
objections do not relate to the licensing objectives. An authority’s decision cannot
be based on dislike of gambling, or a general notion that it is undesirable to allow
gambling premises in an area (with the exception of the casino resolution powers).
In deciding to reject an application, a licensing authority should rely on reasons
that demonstrate that the licensing objectives are not being met.

2 Fundamental Principles

2.1 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime

2.2 Applicants for premises licences will have to hold an operating licence from
the Gambling Commission before the premises licence can be issued. The



licensing authority will not need to investigate the suitability of an applicant since
the Commission will have already done so for both operating and personal
licences.

2.7 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

Generally the Commission would not expect licensing authorities to become
concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as this
will be a matter dealt with under the operating licence or personal licence.

2.10 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling

With limited exceptions, the intention of the Gambling Act is that children and
young persons should not be permitted to gamble and should be prevented from
entering those gambling premises that are adult-only environments. Children
must be protected from being “harmed or exploited by gambling” which in practice
means preventing them from taking part in or being in close proximity to gambling
and for there to be restrictions on advertising so that gambling products are not
aimed at children or advertised in such a way that makes them particularly
attractive to children.

2.11 Specific measures to prevent this may include:-
a) Supervision of entrances
b) Segregation of gambling from areas frequented by children
c) Supervision of gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific
premises
d) Gaming machines in betting shops should not be visible from outside the
premises
e) Enhanced CRB checks may be required for all applicants in relation to
Family Entertainment Centres and declaration from an applicant that he or
she has not been convicted of a relevant offence
These considerations will be particularly relevant on tracks (where children will be
permitted in the betting areas on race-days)

2.12 The Act does not seek to prohibit particular groups of adults from gambling
in the same way that it prohibits children. “Vulnerable persons” will not be defined
but for the purposes of this policy the assumption is that this group includes
people who from a common sense perspective, a provider of gambling services
would be expected to assess as unlikely to be able to make informed or balanced
decisions about gambling, due to a learning disability, mental health problem, a
known compulsion to gamble or the effects of alcohol or drugs.

Operators should make information publicly available via leaflets etc about
organisations that can provide advice and support, both in relation to gambling
itself and to debt e.g. GamCare, Gamblers Anonymous, Gordon House
Association, National Debtline, local Citizens Advice Bureaux and independent
advice agencies.

2.13 Consideration must be given, in relation to particular premises, whether any



special considerations apply in relation to the protection of vulnerable persons.
Any such considerations will need to be balanced against the authority’s objective
to aim to permit the use of premises for gambling.

2.16 Consideration may be given to imposing conditions concerning

» Installation of cash dispensers (ATMs) on premises (e.g. location)
+ As set by regulation.

2.17 Bookmakers shops: While the authority has discretion as to the number,
nature and circumstances of use of betting machines, there is no evidence that
such machines give rise to regulatory concerns. This authority will consider
limiting the number of machines only where there is clear evidence that such
machines have been or are likely to be used in breach of the licensing objectives.
Where there is such evidence, this authority may consider, when reviewing the
licence, the ability of staff to monitor the use of such machines from the counter.

6 Principle to be applied in exercising functions under Part 15 of the Act
with respect to inspection of premises and the power under Section 346 of
the Act to institute criminal proceedings

6.1 The Enforcement Concordat (now called the Regulatory Compliance Code)
will be accepted as best practice. The Better Regulation Executive and Hampton
review of regulatory inspections and enforcement will be used as models, as
follows:

* Proportionate: regulators should only intervene when necessary:
remedies should be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified
and minimised;

* Accountable: regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be
subject to public scrutiny;

» Consistent: rules and standards must be joined up and implemented
fairly;

» Transparent: regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple
and user friendly; and

» Targeted: regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise
side effects.

9. Standard Conditions

Appendix 2 (Section 169 of the Act) contains a pool of model conditions that may
be imposed or excluded by the licensing authority. The Act provides that
conditions may be attached to premises licences. Conditions may be attached in
a number of ways:

» They may be attached automatically, having been set out on the face of
the Act including mandatory and default conditions from the Secretary
of State, or

* They may be attached to premises licences by licensing authorities The
authority should take decisions on individual conditions on a case-by-



case basis and choose suitable and appropriate conditions to suit the
specific needs of an individual premises’ operation.

10. Enforcement

10.1 The enforcement of gambling law and the inspection of licensed premises
will be detailed in the Protocol between the Gambling Commission, Brighton &
Hove City Council and Sussex Police. This protocol will monitor compliance with
the provisions of the Act and with licence conditions, and the investigation of
suspected offences.

10.2 In general, the approach of the Commission will be that the authority which
issues a licence or permit should take the lead in ensuring compliance with the
licence and any conditions attached to it, including compliance with relevant
codes of practice.

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

5.1 Financial Implications:

The Gambling Act 2005 provides for fees to be payable to the licensing authority
in respect of the discharge of their functions. The fee levels are set centrally at a
level to allow licensing authorities to fully recover the costs of administration,
inspection and enforcement of the regime.

5.2 Legal Implications:

5.2.1 Section 153 of the Gambling Act provides that in exercising its functions
under Part 8 of the Act (premises licensing and provisional statements), a
licensing authority shall aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as
it thinks it is:
(a) in accordance with any relevant code of practice under section 24 (i.e.
such as that found within the Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes
of Practice (LCCP))
(b) in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission
under section 25
(c) reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to (a) and
(b) above), and
(d) in accordance with the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy (subject
to (a) and (c) above).

5.2.2 The power to review a premises licence is designed to provide the
Licensing Authority with a suitable mechanism to tackle problems that may
subsequently arise once a premises is licensed.

5.2.3 The Sub-Committee must consider the premises licence review and take
such of the steps mentioned below (if any), as it considers necessary. The steps
are:

« To add, remove or amend the conditions attached to the premises



licence

* To suspend the licence for a specified period not exceeding three
months

« To revoke the licence

If the Sub-Committee decides to take action of a kind specified above they must
specify the time at which the action shall take place.

The Sub-Committee may also consider issuing a warning to the licence holder
and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time.

If none of the above steps is considered necessary the licence should remain in
the form it was granted.

Lawyer Consulted: Rebecca Sidell Date: 02.12.2014

5.3 Equalities Implications:

Diversity is valued and strong, safe communities are vital to future prosperity.

5.4 Crime & Disorder Implications:

Gambling policy aims to prevent crime and disorder and protect public safety.

5.5 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

Gambling is a crucial business and employment opportunity and unnecessary
regulation might lead to legal challenge.

5.6 Corporate / Citywide Implications:

The success of the city’s tourism strategy requires a safe, attractive city centre to
improve competitiveness. The Act may significantly change night time economy.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Appendix A — The Application
2. Appendix B — Existing licence
3. Appendix C — Representation

4. Appendix D — Map of area



Documents in Members’ Rooms

1. Brighton & Hove City Council, Gambling Act 2005: Statement of Gambling
Policy 2013.

Background Documents

1. Brighton & Hove City Council, Gambling Act 2005: Statement of Gambling
Policy 2013.



APPSNDIX

SCHEDULE 4 Regulation 8(1)

Form of the notice of intention to hold a review to be given to holder of the
premises licence and responsible authorities

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO HOLD A REVIEW OF A
PREMISES LICENCE

This notice is given in accordance with regulations made under section 200 of
the Gambling Act 2005 '

Notice is hereby given that the following licensing authority:
Brighton & Hove City Council

Whose address is:

Regulatory Services, Environmental Health & Licensing, Bartholomew

House, Bartholomew S uare Brl h
9 - g “35!1 nc.h‘ YIITANILL

& “' (& .

Website: www.brighton-_hove.gov.uk, }

M M
£ SRR -mA ow~~‘

Y‘Pﬂﬁ A%, in T*rr‘t’“m ” Wi ,"
intends to hold a review under section 201 of the Gambling Act 2005 of the
premises licence which is in force at the following premises:

Metrobet, j X

56 BoundaryRoad oo P AT
Hove

BN3 5TD

The following type of premises licence has effect in respect of the premises:

Betting (other) premises licence

The licensing authority intends to hold the review for the following
reasons:

The premises has now been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after
receiving advice following the first. The licensing objective: Protecting children and
other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being
promoted effectively. (A copy of the application is enclosed with this notice).

The following person connected with the licensing authority is able to give further
information about the review:

Mark Savage-Brookes

Representations about the proposed review may be made in writing to the licensing
authority by the licence holder, a responsible authority or an interested party during



t T §

2

s A L B '

the period of 28 consecutive days beginning on the date on which the notice of the
authority’s intention to hold the review was given to the licence holder. The last day
of the period for making representations is:

30" November 2014

Following a review under section 201 of the Gambling Act 2005 a licensing authority
may decide to take any of the following kinds of action:

e revoke the licence

o suspend the licence for a specified period not exceeding 3 months
e add, remove or amend a condition attached to the licence

|| SERVED & DUPLICATE OF THIS NOTICE UPON ____. ... .
(ST 4 Cian qen. - N2 NA

| BY POSTING SAME BY HRST CLASS POST

g
o MM 204 B e,
;

o THiIS DAY, 3 OF Tt 201X

---------------------------

i
| \‘"‘HED“%,__/.J_é\"’N

10



@ @ ‘i ii h SCHEDULE 5 Regulation 8(5)

Form of the notice of intention to hold a review to be published by a
licensing authority

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO HOLD A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE UNDER THE GAMBLING ACT 2005

Notice is hereby given that the following licensing authority:

Brighton & Hove City Council, Regulatory Services, Environmental Health &
Licensing, Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton, BN )P

Intends to hold a review under section 201 of the Gambling Act 2005 of the premises licence which
is in force at the following premises:

Metrobet, 56 Boundary Road, Hove, BN3 5TD

The following type of premises licence applies to the premises:

Betting (other) premises licence

The licensing authority intends to hold the review for the following reasons:

The premises has now been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after receiving advice
following the first. The licensing objective: Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from
being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being promoted effectively.

The licence holder or a responsible authority may make representations in writing to the licensing
authority about the review, as may any of the following persons:

e A person who lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the
authorised activities
e A person who has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities
e A person who represents someone in any of the above two categories
Representations may be made during the period of 28 consecutive days beginning on the date on
which notice of the intention to hold a review was given to the licence holder. That period ends on:

30* November 2014

Further information about the review is available from the licensing authority.

It is an offence under section 342 of the Gambling Act 2005 if a person, without
reasonable excuse, gives to a licensing authority for a purpose connected with that Act
information which is false or misleading.

11



12



Application for a review of a premises licence under the Gambling Act 2005

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

If you are completing this form by hand, please write legibly in block capitals using ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary (marked with the number of the relevant question). You may wish to
keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

Part 1 — Applicant Details
1. Name of Applicant: Mr M Savage-Brookes, Licensing Officer
[Where the applicant is an individual please give your first name(s) as well as your surname]

2. Applicant’s address (home [] or business [X] [check or tick appropriate box])
Regulatory Services PR T 2
Environmental Health & Licensing ‘
Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square

Brighton

Postcode: BN1 1JP

(R v

3(a) Are you making the application as a responsible authority? Yes XI No' [

3(b) If the answer to question 3(a) is yes, indicate the type of responsible authority:
Brighton & Hove City Council Licensing Authority

4(a) If the answer to question 3(a) is no, please confirm by ticking or checking the box that you are
applying as an interested party [] _

4(b) If you have ticked or checked the box in answer to question 4(a), please indicate on what
basis you qualify as an interested party:

N/A

[Where there are further applicants, the information required by questions 1 to 4(b) should be
included on additional sheets attached to this form, and those sheets should be clearly marked
“Details of further applicants’]

‘ Part 2 - Premises Details

5. Give the trading name used at the licensed premises to which the application for a review
relates: Metrobet

13



6. Give the address of the premises or, if not known, give a description of the premises and its
location. Where the premises are a vessel, then (if known) give the place indicated in the premises
licence as the place in the licensing authority’s area where the vessel is wholly or partly situated. If
possible, any address should include a postcode:

56 Boundary Road
Hove

Postcode: BN3 5TD

7. Type of premises:
Casino [_] Bingo Hall [] Adult Gaming Centre []

(arcade restricted to those who are 18
or over)

Betting (track) [] Betting (other) Family entertainment centre []

(arcade which admits both over and
under 18s)

8. Premises licence (if known): 2009/01554/GABOT

9. Give the name of the person(s) or organisation(s) in whose name the licence is held.
Metrobet Bookmakers Limited

[Where an individual is the licence holder please give their first name(s) as well as their surname.]

Part 3 — Details of grounds on which a review is being sought

10(a) Please give details of the grounds on which a review is being sought.

On 25" April 2014, the premises was subject to a test purchase, conducted by the Brighton & Hove
City Council Licensing Team in partnership with the Gambling Commission. A young person
(sixteen year old male) was able to enter the premises at 15:05 hours and play on an age
restricted Category B2 ~(fixed odds betting terminal aka FOBT) gaming machine. There was one
member of staff present during the time that the young person was on the premises. The young
person left the premises ten minutes later without being challenged at any time by staff.

Metrobet Bookmakers Limited were written to by Mr Jim Whitelegg, Senior Environmental Health
Officer, Brighton & Hove City Council's Environmental Health & Licensing Team, on 1st May 2014,
to confirm that they had failed this test purchase and had committed offences under Sections 47
and 46 of the Gambling Act 2005. They were informed that a re-test would occur in the future
(Appendix A).

A response to Mr Whitelegg's letter was received on 9" May 2014 (dated 7" May 2014), from Paul
Brand, Operations Manager at Metrobet Bookmakers Limited, confirming a control measure that
they would put in place to prevent this from happening in the future. This involved all gaming
machines on the premises being in a 'blocked' state when idle, to ensure that anyone wishing to
play a machine having to approach a staff member to enable the terminal for use. At this stage it

14



was confirmed that the member of staff could challenge someone about their age (Appendix B).

On 1% July 2014, Paul Brand emailed Mr Andy Isaacs, Compliance Manager at the Gambling
Commission, to confirm that this voluntary control measure had been rescinded due to negative
economic impact it had caused the premises. It was confirmed in the same email and in a second
email to Mr Isaacs, on 2" July 2014, that the gaming machine closest to the door would remain in
a blocked state when idle, but that the other machines would be switched on. Mr Isaacs informed
Mr Whitelegg of this change in operation by telephone.

On 15" July 2014 a licensing inspection of the premises was carried out by Mrs Emma Bricknell,
Licensing Officer from Brighton & Hove City Council. Mrs Bricknell spoke to the manager of the
premises about the test purchase failure and completed a checklist with him, to ensure that the
requirements and conditions of the Betting Premises Licence were being adhered to. Advice was
given regarding age restricted gaming machines and not allowing anyone under the age of 18 on
to the premises.

On 9" October 2014, the premises was subject to a second test purchase. A different young
person (sixteen year old male) was able to enter the premises at 15:02 hours and play on an age
restricted Category B2 (FOBT) gaming machine. The terminal played on by the young person was
was the one closest to the door. The young person did not have to ask a member of staff if he
could play on this machine. There were two members of staff on the premises, behind the serving
counter, during the time that the young person was on the premises. The young person left the
premises eight minutes later without being challenged at any time by staff (Appendix C). Mark
Savage-Brookes acted as Supervising Officer during this visit and was present during the whole
time that the young person was in the premises. Mr Savage-Brookes noted what he witnessed
straight after the visit (Appendix E).

The premises has now been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after receiving
advice following the first. It is clear that the licensing objective: Protecting children and other
vuinerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being promoted effectively.

10(b) Indicate any specific actions you consider the licensing authority should take following the
review, including the reasons why you consider those actions are appropriate:

The Licensing Team feel that it is reasonable and proportionate to seek additional conditions on
the licence or other action that the Licensing Sub Committee feels is appropriate.

Part 4 — Supporting Documents

11. List any supporting documents which you are submitting with the application:
Follow up letter following first failed Test Purchase (Appendix A)

Letter of response received from Metrobet (Appendix B)

Test Purchase proforma following second Test Purchase failure (Appendix C)
Follow up letter following second failed Test Purchase (Appendix D)

Supervising Officer notes regarding second Test Purchase (Appendix E)

15



Part 5 — Declarations and Checklist

Il We confirm that, to the best of my/ our knowledge, the information contained

in this application is true. I/ We understand that it is an offence under section IZ
342 of the Gambling Act 2005 to give information which is false or misleading

in, or in relation to, this application.

I/We understand that it is now necessary to give notice to the licence holder ¢
and the responsible authorities in relation to the premises

Part 6 — Signatures

12. Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. If signing on behalf
of the applicant, please state in what capacity:

Signature:

Print Name: Mr M Savage-Brookes
Date: 30/10/2014 (dd/mm/yyyy)

Capacity: Licensing Officer

[Where there is more than one applicant, please use an additional sheet clearly marked
“Signature(s) of further applicant(s)”. The sheet should include, for each additional applicant, all
the information requested in paragraph 12.]

[Where the application is to be submitted in an electronic form, the signature should be generated
electronically and should be a copy of the person’s written signature.]

Part 7 — Contact Details

13(a) Please give the name of a person who can be contacted about the application:
Mark Savage-Brookes

13(b) Please give one or more telephone numbers at which the person identified in question 13(a)
can be contacted:

01273 292100

14. Postal address for correspondence associated with this application:
Environmental Health & Licensing

2" Floor

Bartholomew House

Bartholomew Square

Brighton

Postcode:BN1 1JP

15. If you are happy for correspondence in relation to the application to be sent via e-mail, please
give the e-mail address to which you would like correspondence to be sent:

mark.savage-brookes@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk R

16



‘ N : Regulatory Services,
* l Apperdix A . Public Health
A, JTTTL 0 Bartholomew House

Brighton & Hove Bartholomew Square
City Council Brighton
BN1 1JP

Mr B O’Farrell Date: I* May 2014

Metrobet Bookmakers Limited Our Ref:  2014/04158/GAPREM/EH
260 Seven Sisters Road

LONDON Phone: 01273 292438

N4 2HY Fax: 01273 292196

e-mail: Jim.whitelegg@brighton-hove.gesx.gov.uk

Dear Mr B O’Farrell

Gambling Act 2005 - Betting Premises Licence: 2009/01554/GABOT
Operating licence number: 000-020443-N-303592-006

Operating licence holder: Metrobet Bookmakers Limited

Re: Metrobet Bookmakers, 56 Boundary Road. Hove BN3 5TD

Brighton and Hove City Council have been working in partnership with the Gambling
Commission to undertake test purchases across a number of different operators, to test the
effectiveness of underage gambling policies and procedures at gambling premises. The tests
were designed to provide us and the Commission with assurance that licensed operators
have sufficient safeguards in place to prevent underage gambling.

On 25 April 2014 we conducted a test purchase at premises operated by you at:

56 Boundary Road, Hove, BN3 5TD
Time of Test: 15:05

A young male entered the betting premises at 15:05. There was one staff member on duty
on the premises, with approximately fifteen customers on the premises at the time. The
young person played a gaming machine and exited the premises ten minutes after entering
without being challenged for his age at any time.

Section 47 of the Gambling Act provides that a person commits an offence if they permit a
child or young person to enter premises where a betting licence has effect. Further, Section
46 of that Act states that a person commits an offence if they invite or permit a child or
young person to gamble. The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice also require
operators to have policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling, and that
operators must monitor the effectiveness of these.

We request that you respond in writing to this letter by 14 May 2014 to inform us how you
will address the weaknesses in your underage gambling procedures shown by this test.
Please be aware that Brighton and Hove Council intend to conduct a re-test of your
gambling premises in the future, and should that test again show weaknesses, consideration
may be given to initiating a review of your premises licence.

Telephone: 01273 290000
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

17



Yours sincerely,

Jim Whitelegg
Senior Environmental Health Officer
Environmental Health & Licensing

c.c Metrobet, 56 Boundary Road, Hove BN3 5TD
Compliance Manager, Gambling Commission

If requested by a third party, under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the contents
of this letter may be disclosed by Brighton and Hove City Council. For further advice please contact (01273)
291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foi.

18



~/1f;ﬁ2/f.2'%/',>(/;<x‘ A

MefrobeT-Bookmckers Limited, 260 Seven Sisters Road, Finsbury Park, London N4 2HY.
Tel: 08708 509051 Fax: 020 7619 3596

BRICGHTON & HOVE CiTY COUNCIL

Jim Whitelegg ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & LICENSING
Environmental Health & Licensing DATE RECEIVED
Regulatory Services R
Bartholomew House ta MaY 23
Bartholomew Square '
Brighton

BN1 1JP

7 May 2014
Dear Mr Whitelegg,

Thank you for your ietter of 15t May. Unfortunately Mr. O'Farreli is abroad at the
moment but has been made aware of this situation. | am responding on his behalf.

We take our responsibilities under the Gambling Act very seriously and are therefore
very concerned that the procedures that we have in place to prevent under aged
gambling have been found wanting. Our staff are frained to challenge anyone who
appears to be under the age of twenty-one to produce some form of photo ID. If
they cannot, they are asked to leave. To date this has proved very effective across
our estate but obviously not so on this occasion. | have spoken to the staff member
involved and disciplinary action will follow.

To prevent any recurrence we have now put in place a further measure. Going
forward these machines will remain in “Blocked” state when idle. Anyone wishing to
play a machine will first have to approach a staff member to enable the terminal for
use. At that point they can be challenged before having an opportunity to play. | am
confident that this will prove successful.

Yours sincerely

/ / £ i

Paul Brand
Operations Manager
Metrobet Bookmakers Limited

Registered Office
260 Seven Sisters Road, Finsbury Park, London N4 2HY Registered No. 6737515 England

19



20



RESTRICTED — OPERATIONS //,OXE—’/XV’/}( as

Proforma - YP name..

&l . ; : .
Name of First Officer entering premises.. TE. . MPARKE SAVAGE - BROCKES

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Name of Second Officer.......ocuzeerneeennienneeenesnns ORLAL CORN ELL

Datec///O//é— ............................................................................

Time YP entered 5 9, 2

PIETIISES. .. cvnvnenenee T e,
Time YP exited -

PIEemises......c.oevveenvrenn.. /Q/O .....................................................................................
Name/address of premises/operator...........

.......................................... Hidlrobet. Bounday Road, HOVE
The YP should have been fully briefed by a responsible officer, including health and
safety, test methodology, and information on crediting and playing a gaming machine
(e.g. Category C for an AGC, which will be £70 prize, though some older models may

be £35 or £25 prize..... Category B2/B3 in betting premises, and the YP should be
encouraged fo play at 25 pence stakes to reduce gambling exposure).

Young person’s report to responsible officer (as soon as test is complete):

Point of challenge (if any):

» Iwas challenged when attempting to enter the premises
Description of circumstances e.g. I was asked for ID, I was asked not to

..............................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

* [ was allowed to access the premises unchallenged - but I was challenged at
some point between entering the premises and before I put money into a
machine
Description of circumstances e.g. I walked around for at least 60 seconds, in
open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID by staff, I was
asked to leave the premises, I was asked whether I had gambled yet

..............................................................................................................................
..............................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................

o I'was allowed to access the premises unchallenged, and allowed to insert
money into a machine — but I was challenged while playing a machine
Description of circumstances e.g. I walked around for at least 60 seconds, in
open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID by staff while
playing the machine, I was asked to leave, I was asked how much I had spent
or how much I had won

..............................................................................................................................

21



RESTRICTED - OPERATIONS

..............................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................

e I was allowed to access the premises unchallenged, and allowed to insert
money into a machine. I played the machine for around five to seven
minutes without being challenged. I then tried to leave the premises but was
challenged while trying to do so.

Description of circumstances e.g. [ had walked around for at least 60 seconds,
in open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID when trying to
leave premises, I was asked to leave, I was asked how much I had spent or
how much I had won

..............................................................................................................................
..............................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

e [ entered the prgmises with £0. 10 play machines with. I left the premises
with £..2...... (to be returned to responsible officer).

o (other scenario ' or

Ty e nof‘m?é]} 1) ALec] S
.ok ,czw/oo;gc/’“wreaé =0 Ll I6ge
CNY #HMIE &5 O HFht- PEGR/E /) FheE

22



GC\ Lic CJ'/”‘W ) Regulatory Services,
é I o Public Health
Bartholomew House

Brighton & Hove 7 o Bartholomew Square
City Council /f/wz’~:’fcif,>(/f. ¢ L. Brighton
BN1 1JP
Metrobet Bookmakers Limited Date: 15 October 2014
EgON%ec‘)’;“ Sisters Road OurRef.  2014/04158/GAPREM/EH
N4 2HY Phone: 01273 292100
Email; mark.savage-brookes@brighton-
hove.acsx.qov.uk
Dear Sir/Madam,

Gambling Act 2005 — Betting Premises Licence: 2009/01554/GABOT
Operating licence number: 000-020443-N-303592-006

Operating licence holder: Metrobet Bookmakers Limited

Re: Metrobet Bookmakers, 56 Boundary Road, Hove BN3 5TD

We wrote to you on 1% May 2014 to inform you of a test purchase carried out at a
premises operated by you at 56 Boundary Road, Hove. In this letter we confirmed
that your staff failed to prevent a young person from entering the premises and
playing a gambling machine.

In the same letter we confirmed that we would conduct a re-test of the premises in
the future. This re-test was carried out on 9" October 2014.

A young male entered the betting premises at 15:02. There were two members of
staff on duty on the premises, a male and a female, both located behind the counter.
There were approximately seven customers on the premises at the time. The young
person stood in the premises for a period before playing on a gaming machine
located nearest to the door and exited the premises approximately eight minutes
after entering without being challenged for his age at any time.

As already confirmed in our previous letter, Section 47 of the Gambling Act provides
that a person commits an offence if they permit a child or young person to enter
premises where a betting licence has effect. Further, Section 46 of that Act states
that a person commits an offence if they invite or permit a child or young person to
gamble. The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice also require operators to
have policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling, and that operators
must monitor the effectiveness of these.

Due to this second failure to prevent a young person from entering the premises and

permitting him to gamble, | now write to confirm that we will be applying for a Review
of your Betting Premises Licence.

Telephone: 01273 290000
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

23



Notice of our application for Review will be sent to you in the near future. If you wish
to discuss the contents of this letter with me, please contact me on the above contact
details.

Yours sincerely,

Mark Savage-Brookes
Licensing Officer
Environmental Health & Licensing

c.c. Metrobet, 56 Boundary Road, Hove, BN3 5TD (by hand)
Compliance Manager, Gambling Commission (via email)

If requested by a third party, under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the
contents of this letter may be disclosed by Brighton and Hove City Council. For further advice please
contact (01273) 291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.qov. uk/foi.

24



Haperdx

£

jl 0'4\&\)7 A ’fou 7 .LN/} If A -

IS- 13 on mw

Ao “{,h Sols - @2;(4 G

\ Ui_v {’\af ll\'Lt / ﬂr\gr‘é

5(@2-& ST SLQ [l

}ka(\s T N\owe ‘f\:n ,L((s'-«.gé’

sie Bis) o ol (4

7)1.41 ’\I’A ﬁt?,/M ~ {[:ug/(‘ kf?b .'L DA~
| N ’A,]{ ’}/LZ -1 l (r—’ &/ 1

=T S L W

C} ,z.’rLeA/ [si[kui c\i/(')

roon . 1 lesksd [les L

YL A )e (D N

tﬁﬂ [ et

;/\aﬂ 15‘

Cotn e w’\ I? C7 . 5!\&»1

25



L—»‘ Bod. oS A (ot

02

(.
fi“’\:)/\/\ CO.)A;tU & _)_L’ lcjok5d

J'{'t,-s e Jl\m ;_SLO ‘}’L(‘

(';mMiU._ Mozp.ﬁ Cclavic

I'V\vfn { ,LM“Q //vx-cﬂ =3 ( M.A-Gg(

7{1{ Ol 'c,(af—eﬂt l“ﬁu,

rﬁ;f(\ | o m DL(\AJZ

/

. H
{ an C(A r;v(/(_ *’-/”‘jr»ev( :1'_\,-1'
Q\f‘os\»L (’3 ‘r\nu.\.JJCS\ .

‘Hi jTA'{ . l{'z‘/ﬂ‘ SN

A= I.TW &&! G{A"H\t

Cs::L,AZ{U [/\) -(l S [ e~ o,Dwf

W(M}L ok Dw“{\-p{/(?} S
J S

26

e



OPPENDIX B

Premises licence number: 2009/01554/GABOT

BETTING PREMISES LICENCE

This licence is issued under section 164 of the Gambling Act 2005 by

Brighton and Hove City Council

Part |- Details of person to whom licence is issued

Metrobet Bookmakers Limited

of the following address:

260 Seven Sisters Road
Finsbury Park

London
N4 2JA

Who holds an operating licence which has been given the following operating licence
number by the Gambling Commission:

Gambling Commission Operating licence number: 000-020443-N303592-001

Part 2 — Details of the premises in respect of which the licence is issued:

Facilities for gambling may be provided in accordance with this licence on the following premises:
56 Boundary Road

Hove

BN3 5TD

Part 3 - Premises licence details

This licence comes into effect on:

12" August 2009
This licence is of unlimited duration

The following conditions have been attached to the licence by the issuing authority under section
169(1) of the Gambling Act 2005: None

Issued 12™ August 2009 /2

27



The following conditions, which would otherwise attach to the licence by virtue of regulations made
under section 168 of the Gambling Act 2005, have been excluded by the issuing authority under
section 169(1)(b) of that Act: None

A scale plan is attached as an annex to this licence

Signed on behalf of the issuing licensing authority

Qo

7ZZITY)

g (I é 777

= =z 7 Vzzzrzz 7]

WSS

Tl ea e
|7

§. -

SN

/ Ground Py

/ SIDE PROFILE b

/

/A

A

/

/

/l— I
— * Em s
P VJ 40.65m? | 437 56R? E‘EEL‘?:‘%:“;-

* K27 1/ > "_":. =

4 L;:xu; | ?

Uy
| Wetng shef b poper depley [_‘/ Poucer coses dmrnantry
“ = \C ) e TR -
2o, 3 Posme TV {4 v

([ L V) / Fe : e S Kingaley Symes & Scott

: C ; fdrm—-\ hw—\ [cwrw /—cmr \ ?.-‘“m

4 s,
23t 7 Lowiow soft C v |

. nd wrbng area for the deabled v RICS ‘?im::ﬂ e M737 13600

A A C_é " g

._ [— / ﬁ

:'—I — m ? = = oot

/A ‘-—___—-—_‘_'-—-—-.' I EEamEN IS mEEEsmET ST Tt
ey et s e BN T +4 S
over free standing stock. LCEACE PLAN
GROUND FLOOR FRONT ELEVATION Taw | w |
el . [
© NGSEY SYNES ¢ T

Issued 12% August 2009 2/2

28



Appendix C

L

GAMBLING
COMMISSION

e ——
Mr M Savage-Brookes RIGHTLN & WOVE 117 COUNGE
Environmental Health and Licansing FEERLTE I TGRS G
2™ Fioor Bartholomew Housa \TH HECEN
Bartholomew Sguara . .

Brighton 8 NDV |
BH1 1.JP

ERWE- L MERN

28 Movember 2094

Diear Mr Savage-Brookes,

Review of premises licences 2010001 TIGAAGCHN and 2009/ 554/GABOT:
representation submitted by responsible authority

This ropresentation i submitted to the Licensing Committes of Brighton and Howe City
Council by the Gambling Commission as a responsibile autharily under section 157 of the
Gambling Act 2005 (the Act), in accordance with section 200(5) of the Act, and in respect of
the reviews of the premises lloences hald by

& Metrobet Bookmakers Limited, 56 Boundary Road, Hove, BN3 5TD

¢+ C A Heal & Sons Amusements Limited, Regency Arcade, 64 Wesl Street,
Brighton, BN1 2RA

Tha reprasantation is made with reference to the third licensing objective al section 1(c) of
the Acl, specificalty the objective of “protecting children.....from bedng harmed ar explodsd by
gambding”; and to the Commission's codes of practics issued under section 24 of the Act,
specifically the social responesbility code provigion 3.2 conceming "access to gambling by
childran and young persoans,

The Gambding Commisson supported the test purchase oparations conducted by Brighton
angd Hove City Council on 25 April 2014 and 9 Dctober 2074, 1he lafter 1o re-test Beensees
whose underage gambling contreds had shown to be ineflective during the April cperation,

We were in attendance with the council on both days

The Commission ataches & high priosty to the prevenlion of underage gambsng. as il is ona
of the key licensing objectivas of tha Act thal children ara protected from being hasmad of
exploited by gambling: i is the responsibilty of gambding Brensess to manage the rsks to
this objective that thelr premises may present. Section 45 of the Act makes It an offence to
permit a child or young person to gamble, and saction 47 makes & an offence to permit a
ehife o young person to enter a batiing or adult gaming cenire premses

29



The Commission's Licenca Conditions and Codes of Practice (code provision 3 .2) require
belting and adult gaming centre ficansees o have policies and procedures in place o
prevent underage gambling, and lo monitor the effectiveness of these. Many gambling
operaiors provide the Commission with frequent, mbust evidence thal they ana monilaring
their conlrols, for example through the commissioning of independent test purchasing of thair
premises, However, the Cammission works with licensing authosiliss across England and
Wabss to conduct 1est purchasing among licensses who do nof provide it with such ewdence.
All of the betling, hingo and adult gaming centre licensses tesied on 25 April 2014 had been
wentified by the Comméssion and Bnghton and Howe council as thosa thal do not provide
suich evidence. Tes! purchasing s therefore one means by which the Cammission and
llcarsing authorities will measure thae affectivenass of leensees’ underage gambling

conirals, in the absence of adequate dala prowvided by licensses themaehes,

The results in Brghton and Hove are refleciive of the test purchase resulis from other pards
of Ergland and Wales, and the Commission encouwrages ragulatary action by licensing
auhorties where local gambling Beensess fa o marove their conlrols. The Commigsion's
prass notice published on 2 September 2014 warned all gambling Scensees that *_._.local
authortes are remending the operators that if they fail fo voluntarly deliver improvemeants, or
if their gambling premises fail & further test purchass, than they may be subjacl to a review
of thewr premises licence which coukd culminate in the impositon of sircler eence conditions
of the suspension of ravocation of thelr premises koence”

Tha Commission therefore suppaorts the reviews of thess premises ikences by Brighton and
Howve council in view of the weaknesses in underage gambling conlrals that were
demensirated al these gambling premisas in the April and October 1851 purchaze operations.

‘Yours sincerely

TS~

Matthew Hill
DCirector
Gambling Commission

30



Appendix D




32



Agenda Item 12
Licensing Panel Brighton & Hove City Council
(Gambling Act 2005 Functions)

Subject: Application for Review of Premises Licence under the
Gambling Act 2005

Premises: Units 1-4 Regency Arcade, 63-64 West Street,
Brighton, BN1 2RA

Applicant: Mark Savage-Brookes, Licensing Officer,

Environmental Health & Licensing, Regulatory
Services, Public Health, Brighton & Hove City Council

Date of Meeting: 19" December 2014
Report of: Head of Regulatory Services
Contact Officer: Name: Sarah Cornell Tel: (01273) 295801

E-mail: Sarah.cornell@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk
Wards Affected: Regency
FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT:
1.1 To determine four applications for Review of Gambling Premises Licences
(Adult Gaming Centres) under the Gambling Act 2005 for Units 1-4 Regency
Arcade.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 That the Panel determine the reviews of the premises licences for premises
known as Unit 1, Unit 2, Unit 3 & Unit 4 Regency Arcade.

3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION & CONSULTATION

3.1 Applications were received from Mark Savage-Brookes, Licensing Officer, to
review the four licences granted to Regency Arcade, 63-64 West Street, Brighton,
BN1 2RA:-

Appendix A-Units 1,2 3 & 4

3.2 Existing licences attached at Appendix B.

3.3 The grounds for the reviews relate to the following Licensing objective:

33



» Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed
or exploited by gambling (it should be noted that the requirement in
relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or
exploited by gambling).

3.4 In exercising its function under the Gambling Act 2005 the Licensing Authority
must aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as the Authority
think it:

a) In accordance with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the

Gambling Commission,

b) In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling

Commission,

c) Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives, and

d) In accordance with the Authority’s Licensing Policy.

3.5 At this hearing the licensing authority must:

« Consider the applications made in accordance with Section 200

» Consider any relevant representations

* As a result of a review of a premises licence under section 201 a
licensing authority may—

(a) revoke the licence;

(b) suspend the licence for a specified period not exceeding three
months;

(c) exclude a condition attached to the licence under section 168 or
remove or amend an exclusion;

(d) add, remove or amend a condition under section 169.

Representations received

3.6 Details of the representations made are notified to applicants on receipt by
the Licensing Authority using a pro-forma.

3.7 One representation was received. It was received from the Gambling
Commission (Appendix C).

3.8 Representation received had concerns relating to:

» Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed
or exploited by gambling (it should be noted that the requirement in
relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or
exploited by gambling).

4. CONSULTATION
Commentary on gambling policy
4.1 The following extracts from Brighton & Hove City Council Statement of

Gambling Policy are considered relevant to this application and numbered as they
appear in the policy:

34



1. Introduction

1.2 The gambling objectives are:-

* Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime.

* Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way,

* Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed
or exploited by.

1.5 This policy will come into force on 1 January 2013 by resolution of Full
Council in December 2012 and will be reviewed and published at least every three
years.

The review process will be undertaken using the same principles as the initial
consultation process. The policy will also be under review in the interim periods;
any revisions required by either process will also be the subject of consultation. It
is also subject to guidance issued by the Government including any issued after
the date of publication of this Statement.

1.13 Human Rights

In considering applications, and taking enforcement action, licensing authorities
are subject to The Human Rights Act and in particular the following relevant
provisions of the European Convention on Human Rights:-

. Article 1, Protocol 1 - peaceful enjoyment of possessions. A licence is
considered a possession in law and people should not be deprived of
their possessions except in the public interest.

. Article 6 - right to a fair hearing.

. Article 8 - respect for private and family life. In particular, removal or
restriction of a licence may affect a person’s private life; and
. Article 10 — right to freedom of expression.

Licensing Authorities should be aware that moral objections to gambling are not a
valid reason to reject applications for premises licences. This is because such
objections do not relate to the licensing objectives. An authority’s decision cannot
be based on dislike of gambling, or a general notion that it is undesirable to allow
gambling premises in an area (with the exception of the casino resolution powers).
In deciding to reject an application, a licensing authority should rely on reasons
that demonstrate that the licensing objectives are not being met.

2 Fundamental Principles

2.1 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime

35



2.2 Applicants for premises licences will have to hold an operating licence from
the Gambling Commission before the premises licence can be issued. The
licensing authority will not need to investigate the suitability of an applicant since
the Commission will have already done so for both operating and personal
licences.

2.7 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

Generally the Commission would not expect licensing authorities to become
concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as this
will be a matter dealt with under the operating licence or personal licence.

2.10 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling

With limited exceptions, the intention of the Gambling Act is that children and
young persons should not be permitted to gamble and should be prevented from
entering those gambling premises that are adult-only environments. Children
must be protected from being “harmed or exploited by gambling” which in practice
means preventing them from taking part in or being in close proximity to gambling
and for there to be restrictions on advertising so that gambling products are not
aimed at children or advertised in such a way that makes them particularly
attractive to children.

2.11 Specific measures to prevent this may include:-
a) Supervision of entrances
b) Segregation of gambling from areas frequented by children
¢) Supervision of gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific
premises
d) Gaming machines in betting shops should not be visible from outside the
premises
e) Enhanced CRB checks may be required for all applicants in relation to
Family Entertainment Centres and declaration from an applicant that he or
she has not been convicted of a relevant offence
These considerations will be particularly relevant on tracks (where children will be
permitted in the betting areas on race-days)

2.12 The Act does not seek to prohibit particular groups of adults from gambling
in the same way that it prohibits children. “Vulnerable persons” will not be defined
but for the purposes of this policy the assumption is that this group includes
people who from a common sense perspective, a provider of gambling services
would be expected to assess as unlikely to be able to make informed or balanced
decisions about gambling, due to a learning disability, mental health problem, a
known compulsion to gamble or the effects of alcohol or drugs.

Operators should make information publicly available via leaflets etc about
organisations that can provide advice and support, both in relation to gambling
itself and to debt e.g. GamCare, Gamblers Anonymous, Gordon House
Association, National Debtline, local Citizens Advice Bureaux and independent
advice agencies.

36



2.13 Consideration must be given, in relation to particular premises, whether any
special considerations apply in relation to the protection of vulnerable persons.
Any such considerations will need to be balanced against the authority’s objective
to aim to permit the use of premises for gambling.

2.16 Consideration may be given to imposing conditions concerning

* Installation of cash dispensers (ATMs) on premises (e.g. location)
* As set by regulation.

2.17 Bookmakers shops: While the authority has discretion as to the number,
nature and circumstances of use of betting machines, there is no evidence that
such machines give rise to regulatory concerns. This authority will consider
limiting the number of machines only where there is clear evidence that such
machines have been or are likely to be used in breach of the licensing objectives.
Where there is such evidence, this authority may consider, when reviewing the
licence, the ability of staff to monitor the use of such machines from the counter.

6 Principle to be applied in exercising functions under Part 15 of the Act
with respect to inspection of premises and the power under Section 346 of
the Act to institute criminal proceedings

6.1 The Enforcement Concordat (now called the Regulatory Compliance Code)
will be accepted as best practice. The Better Regulation Executive and Hampton
review of regulatory inspections and enforcement will be used as models, as
follows:

* Proportionate: regulators should only intervene when necessary:
remedies should be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified
and minimised;

* Accountable: regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be
subject to public scrutiny;

» Consistent: rules and standards must be joined up and implemented
fairly;

» Transparent: regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple
and user friendly; and

» Targeted: regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise
side effects.

9. Standard Conditions

Appendix 2 (Section 169 of the Act) contains a pool of model conditions that may
be imposed or excluded by the licensing authority. The Act provides that
conditions may be attached to premises licences. Conditions may be attached in
a number of ways:

* They may be attached automatically, having been set out on the face of
the Act including mandatory and default conditions from the Secretary
of State, or

* They may be attached to premises licences by licensing authorities The

37



authority should take decisions on individual conditions on a case-by-
case basis and choose suitable and appropriate conditions to suit the
specific needs of an individual premises’ operation.

10. Enforcement

10.1 The enforcement of gambling law and the inspection of licensed premises
will be detailed in the Protocol between the Gambling Commission, Brighton &
Hove City Council and Sussex Police. This protocol will monitor compliance with
the provisions of the Act and with licence conditions, and the investigation of
suspected offences.

10.2 In general, the approach of the Commission will be that the authority which
issues a licence or permit should take the lead in ensuring compliance with the
licence and any conditions attached to it, including compliance with relevant
codes of practice.

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

5.1 Financial Implications:

The Gambling Act 2005 provides for fees to be payable to the licensing authority
in respect of the discharge of their functions. The fee levels are set centrally at a
level to allow licensing authorities to fully recover the costs of administration,
inspection and enforcement of the regime.

5.2 Legal Implications:

5.2.1 Section 153 of the Gambling Act provides that in exercising its functions
under Part 8 of the Act (premises licensing and provisional statements), a
licensing authority shall aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as
it thinks it is:
(a) in accordance with any relevant code of practice under section 24 (i.e.
such as that found within the Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes
of Practice (LCCP))
(b) in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission
under section 25
(c) reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to (a) and
(b) above), and
(d) in accordance with the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy (subject
to (a) and (c) above).

5.2.2 The power to review a premises licence is designed to provide the
Licensing Authority with a suitable mechanism to tackle problems that may
subsequently arise once a premises is licensed.

5.2.3 The Sub-Committee must consider the premises licence review and take

such of the steps mentioned below (if any), as it considers necessary. The steps
are:

38



« To add, remove or amend the conditions attached to the premises
licence

* To suspend the licence for a specified period not exceeding three
months

« Torevoke the licence

If the Sub-Committee decides to take action of a kind specified above they must
specify the time at which the action shall take place.

The Sub-Committee may also consider issuing a warning to the licence holder
and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time.

If none of the above steps is considered necessary the licence should remain in
the form it was granted.

Lawyer Consulted: Rebecca Sidell Date: 02.12.2014

5.3 Equalities Implications:

Diversity is valued and strong, safe communities are vital to future prosperity.

5.4 Crime & Disorder Implications:

Gambling policy aims to prevent crime and disorder and protect public safety.

5.5 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

Gambling is a crucial business and employment opportunity and unnecessary
regulation might lead to legal challenge.

5.6 Corporate / Citywide Implications:

The success of the city’s tourism strategy requires a safe, attractive city centre to
improve competitiveness. The Act may significantly change night time economy.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Appendix A — The Applications for Units 1, 2, 3 & 4
2. Appendix B — Existing licences

3. Appendix C — Representation

4. Appendix D — Map of area

Documents in Members’ Rooms

39



1. Brighton & Hove City Council, Gambling Act 2005: Statement of Gambling
Policy 2013.

Background Documents

1. Brighton & Hove City Council, Gambling Act 2005: Statement of Gambling
Policy 2013.

40



APEENDIX QA UNIT_T

SCHEDULE 4 Regulation 8(1)

Form of the notice of intention to hold a review to be given to holder of the
premises licence and responsible authorities

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO HOLD A REVIEW OF A
PREMISES LICENCE

This notice is given in accordance with regulations made under section 200 of
the Gambling Act 2005

Notice is hereby given that the following licensing authority:
Brighton & Hove City Council
Whose address is:

Regulatory Services, Environmental Health & Licensing, Bartholomew
House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton, BN )P

B A

Website: www.briéhtdh:HSVe.gov.uk

intends to hold a review under section 201 of the (‘5;;¢1>mbliﬁgj Act 2005 of the
premises licence which is in force at the following premises:

Regency Arcade,

Unit | .
63-64 West Street T
Brighton _ !
BNI 2RA _  }3%&

The following type of premises licence has effect in respect of the premises:

Adult Gaming Centre premises licence

The licensing authority intends to hold the review for the following
reasons:

The premises has now been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after
receiving advice following the first. The licensing objective: Protecting children and

other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being
promoted effectively. (A copy of the application is enclosed with this notice).

The following person connected with the licensing authority is able to give further
information about the review:

Mark Savage-Brookes

41



. ! s é é ¢ L8 = 2 s 3 34
Representations about the proposed review may be made in writing to the licensing
authority by the licence holder, a responsible authority or an interested party during
the period of 28 consecutive days beginning on the date on which the notice of the
authority’s intention to hold the review was given to the licence holder. The last day
of the period for making representations is:

30" November 2014

Following a review under section 20| of the Gambling Act 2005 a licensing authority
may decide to take any of the following kinds of action:

e revoke the licence
e suspend the licence for a specified period not exceeding 3 months
e add, remove or amend a condition attached to the licence

| | SERVED A DUPLICATE OF THIS NOTICEUPON ..

CAH&aka“&médmﬁwEa&Ub
BY POSTING SAME BY FIRST CLASS POST

0 Rt 22n .

ON THIS DAY, S2_OF OCTogEC 20 1% |

42



. ‘g ' @ PY SCHEDULE 5 Regulation 8(5)

Form of the notice of intention to hold a review to be published by a
licensing authority

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO HOLD A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE UNDER THE GAMBLING ACT 2005

Notice is hereby given that the following licensing authority:

Brighton & Hove City Council, Regulatory Services, Environmental Health &
Licensing, Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton, BN [JP

Intends to hold a review under section 20| of the Gambling Act 2005 of the premises licence which
is in force at the following premises:

Regency Arcade, Units 1-4, 63-64 West Street, Brighton, BNl 2RA

The following type of premises licence applies to the premises:

Adult Gaming Centre premises licence

The licensing authority intends to hold the review for the following reasons:

The premises has now been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after receiving advice
following the first. The licensing objective: Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from
being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being promoted effectively.

The licence holder or a responsible authority may make representations in writing to the licensing
authority about the review, as may any of the following persons:

e A person who lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the
authorised activities
e A person who has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities
e A person who represents someone in any of the above two categories
Representations may be made during the period of 28 consecutive days beginning on the date on
which notice of the intention to hold a review was given to the licence holder. That period ends on:

30" November 2014

Further information about the review is available from the licensing authority.

It is an offence under section 342 of the Gambling Act 2005 if a person, without
reasonable excuse, gives to a licensing authority for a purpose connected with that Act
information which is false or misleading.

43



44



Application for a review of a premises licence under the Gambling Act 2005

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

If you are completing this form by hand, please write legibly in block capitals using ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary (marked with the number of the relevant question). You may wish to
keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

Part 1 — Applicant Details

1. Name of Applicant: Mr M Savage-Brookes, Licensing Officer
[Where the applicant is an individual please give your first name(s) as well as your surname]

2. Applicant’s address (home [] or business [X] [check or rrck appmpna!e box_f)
Regulatory Services | <R et Gomove Uity Counedl
Environmental Health & Licensing

Bartholomew House

Bartholomew Square - 30 007 200

Brighton

Postcode: BN1 1JP Heaith, Safety & Licangine

3(a) Are you making the application as a responsible authority? Yes [X] No []

3(b) If the answer to question 3(a) is yes, indicate the type of responsible authority:
Brighton & Hove City Council Licensing Authority

4(a) If the answer to question 3(a) is no, please confirm by ticking or checking the box that you are
applying as an interested party [ ]

4(b) If you have ticked or checked the box in answer to question 4(a), please indicate on what
basis you qualify as an interested party:

N/A

[Where there are further applicants, the information required by questions 1 to 4(b) should be
included on additional sheets attached to this form, and those sheets should be clearly marked
“Details of further applicants’]

f Part 2 — Premises Details

5. Give the trading name used at the Ilcensed premises to which the application for a review
relates: Regency Arcade

45



6. Give the address of the premises or, if not known, give a description of the premises and its
location. Where the premises are a vessel, then (if known) give the place indicated in the premises
licence as the place in the licensing authority’s area where the vessel is wholly or partly situated. [If
possible, any address should include a postcode:

Unit 1
64 West Street
Brighton

Postcode: BN1 2RA

7. Type of premises:

Casino [] Bingo Hall [] Adult Gaming Centre [X]

(arcade restricted to those who are 18
or over)

Betting (track) [] Betting (other) [] Family entertainment centre []

(arcade which admits both over and
under 18s)

8. Premises licence (if known): 2010/00017/GAAGCN

9. Give the name of the person(s) or organisation(s) in whose name the licence is held.
C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd.

[Where an individual is the licence holder please give their first name(s) as well as their surname.]

Part 3 — Details of grounds on which a review is being sought
10(a) Please give details of the grounds on which a review is being sought.

This premises is comprised of a Family Entertainment Centre and, to the rear of the premises an
Adult Gaming Centre. The premises holds four separate Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences
in respect of four units situated within the Adult Gaming Centre. The Licensing Team seek to
review all four of the Premises Licences as the units are all located close together and form the
whole Adult Gaming Centre part of the premises.

On 25" April 2014, the premises was subject to a test purchase, conducted by the Brighton & Hove
City Council Licensing Team in partnership with the Gambling Commission. A young person
(sixteen year old male) was able to enter the Adult gaming Centre at 14:06 hours and play on an
age restricted Category C gambling machine. There were two members of staff present during the
time that the young person was on the premises. The young person left the premises ten minutes
later without being challenged at any time by staff.

C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd were written to by Mr Jim Whitelegg, Senior Environmental
Health Officer, Brighton & Hove City Council's Environmental Health & Licensing Team, on 1st
May 2014, to confirm that they had failed this test purchase and had committed offences under
Sections 47 and 46 of the Gambling Act 2005. They were informed that a re-test would occur in
the future (Appendix A).

46




A response to Mr Whitelegg's letter was received on 14th May 2014 (dated 13" May 2014), from
Charles Heal, Director of C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd., confirming that they would do all
they can to prevent this from happening in the future (Appendix B).

On 25" June 2014 a licensing inspection of the premises was carried out by Miss Sarah Cornell,
Senior Licensing Officer from Brighton & Hove City Council. Miss Cornell met with Charles Heal
and discussed the test purchase failure and completed a checklist with him, to ensure that the
requirements and conditions of the Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences were being adhered
to. Advice was given regarding age restricted gaming machines and not allowing anyone under
the age of 18 on to the premises.

On 9" October 2014, the premises was subject to a second test purchase. A different young
person (sixteen year old male) was able to enter the Adult gaming Centre at 14:00 hours and play
on two age restricted Category C gambling machines. There were two visible members of staff on
the premises, one behind the cash desk and one walking around. The young person left the
premises approximately seven minutes later without being challenged at any time by staff
(Appendix C). Mark Savage-Brookes acted as Supervising Officer during this visit and was
present during the whole time that the young person was in the premises. Mr Savage-Brookes
noted what he witnessed straight after the visit (Appendix E).

The premises has now been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after receiving
advice following the first. It is clear that the licensing objective: Protecting children and other
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being promoted effectively.

10(b) Indicate any specific actions you consider the licensing authority should take following the
review, including the reasons why you consider those actions are appropriate:

The Licensing Team feel that it is reasonable and proportionate to seek additional conditions on
the licence or other action that the Licensing Sub Committee feels is appropriate.

Part 4 — Supporting Documents

11. List any supporting documents which you are submitting with the application:
Follow up letter following first failed Test Purchase (Appendix A)

Letter of response received from Charles Heal (Director) (Appendix B)

Test Purchase proforma following second Test Purchase failure (Appendix C)
Follow up letter following second failed Test Purchase (Appendix D)

Supervising Officer notes regarding second Test Purchase (Appendix E)

Part 5 — Declarations and Checklist

Il We confirm that, to the best of my/ our knowledge, the information contained

in this application is true. I/ We understand that it is an offence under section 5]
342 of the Gambling Act 2005 to give information which is false or misleading
in, or in relation to, this application.

1/We understand that it is now necessary to give notice to the licence holder X

47



[ and the responsible authorities in relation to the premises |

Part 6 — Signatures

12. Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. If signing on behalf
of the applicant, please state in what capacity:

1

Signature:

Print Name: Mr M Savage-Brookes
Date: 30/10/2014 (dd/mm/yyyy)
Capacity: Licensing Officer

[Where there is more than one applicant, please use an additional sheet clearly marked
“Signature(s) of further applicant(s)”. The sheet should include, for each additional applicant, all
the information requested in paragraph 12.]

[Where the application is to be submitted in an electronic form, the signature should be generated
electronically and should be a copy of the person’s written signature.]

Part 7 — Contact Details

13(a) Please give the name of a person who can be contacted about the application:
Mark Savage-Brookes

13(b) Please give one or more telephone numbers at which the person identified in question 13(a)
can be contacted:

01273 292100

14. Postal address for correspondence associated with this application:
Environmental Health & Licensing

2™ Floor

Bartholomew House

Bartholomew Square

Brighton

Postcode:BN1 1JP

15. If you are happy for correspondence in relation to the application to be sent via e-mail, please
give the e-mail address to which you would like correspondence to be sent:

mark.savage-brookes@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk

48



I ! I Regulatory Services,
’ Public Health
L /4/7/0 &) ‘5// X A | Bartholomew House

Brighton & Hove Bartholomew Square
City Council Brighton
BN1 1JP
Mr C Heal Date: I* May 2014
C A Heal & Sons Amusements Limited Our Ref: 2014/04154/GAPREM/EH
63-64 West Street ’
Brighton Phone: 01273 292438
BNI 2RA Fax: 01273 292196
e-mail: Jimwhitelegg@brighton-hove.gesx.gov.uk

Dear Mr C Heal
~'z¢,-ic>/o'co’2~:1] (A A G-CON

Gambling Act 2005 — Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence: 2010/00017/GAAGCN
Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-104069-004

Operating licence holder: C A Heal & Sons Amusements Limited

Re: Regency Arcade. 63-64 West Street. Brighton BNI 2RA

Brighton and Hove City Council have been working in partnership with the Gambling
Commission to undertake test purchases across a number of different operators, to test the
effectiveness of underage gambling policies and procedures at gambling premises. The tests
were designed to provide us and the Commission with assurance that licensed operators
have sufficient safeguards in place to prevent underage gambling.

On 25 April 2014 we conducted a test purchase at premises operated by you at:

CA Heal and Sons Amusements, 63-64 West Street, Brighton
Time of Test: 14:06

A young male entered the adult gaming centre premises at 14:06. There were two staff
members on duty in the premises, one at the cash desk and the other floor-walking. There
were approximately three other customers on the premises at the time. The young person
played a gaming machine and exited the premises ten minutes after entering without being
challenged for his age at any time.

Section 47 of the Gambling Act provides that a person commits an offence if they permit a
child or young person to enter premises where an adult gaming centre licence has effect.
Further, Section 46 of that Act states that a person commits an offence if they invite or
permit a child or young person to gamble. The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice
also require operators to have policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling,
and that operators must monitor the effectiveness of these.

We request that you respond in writing to this letter by 14 May 2014 to inform us how you
will address the weaknesses in your underage gambling procedures shown by this test.
Please be aware that Brighton and Hove Council intend to conduct a re-test of your
gambling premises in the future, and should that test again show weaknesses, consideration

may be given to initiating a review of your premises [icence'Telephone: 01273 290000
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

49



Yours sincerely,

Jim Whitelegg
Senior Environmental Health Officer
Environmental Health & Licensing

c.C. C A Heal & Sons Amusements Ltd, 4 Kig?quare. Bridgwater, Somerset, TA6 3YF
Andy lsaacs, Compliance Manager, Gambling Commission

If requested by a third party, under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the contents
of this letter may be disclosed by Brighton and Hove City Council. For further advice please contact (01273)
291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foi.

50



Apoerdixk 8.

Regency Leisure Arcade
63-64 West Street

— _ .
\ 2 HOVE c;w COUNCIL \ B”ghton
p—— iSING East Sussex
ROMMENTAL HE{‘A.LTH & L\CENSXNo BN 1 2
SNVIRDY
nATE RE.CE’.VED R A

| 13" May 2014

| Your Ref: 2014/04154/GAPREM/EH

\

Regulatory Service
Public Health
Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square
Brighton

BN1 1JP

Email: jim.whitelega@brighton-hove.acsx.qov.uk
BY EMAIL AND POST

Dear Mr J Whitelegg,

Test Purchase carried out on Regency Leisure Arcade, 63-64 West Street, Brighton,
BN1 2RA.

Gambling Act 2005 - Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence: 2010/00017/GAAGCN
Operating Licence number: 000-001980-N-104069-004

Operating Licence holder: C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Ltd

We acknowledge receipt of your letter dated 1st May 2014 and are very disappointed to
learn we had recently failed a test purchase carried out on the above mentioned premises
on 25th April 2014 at 14.:06.

As a company we take this momentary lack of vigilance extremely seriously and as a
result of this recent event have taken advice from Mr Phil Silver, a BACTA compliance
officer for the southern area. He has recommended the following:

e Further staff training which highlights the importance of ensuring no persons under
the age of 18 are permitted into the adult areas to participate in gambling.
* A random independent test purchase to ensure training has been effective.

In addition, please note our own internal arrangements:

¢ A staff meeting was called as soon as was practically possible to discuss the
findings of the test purchase to reiterate to all staff members the seriousness of this
incident and the potential consequences for them as employees, us as a company
and myself as a Company Director.

As mentioned, this is extremely disappointing and embarrassing for us to experience. We
have traded in West Street as an amusement arcade since 1981 and pride ourselves on
our professional relationships with our customers and our compliance and implementation
of BACTA policies.

51



However, we note and respect your findings and will do all we can to ensure this incident
is not repeated.

We therefore welcome a repeat test purchase as you have indicated; confident the
outcome will be different.

| look forward to hearing from you at your earliest possible convenience.

sy Hed.

Yours sincerely,

Charles Heal
Director

52



RESTRICTED ~ OPERATIONS o ne i

Proforma - YP name.

Name of First Officer entering nremises../w./f?.@ ’éfﬁ) ’//QG{ ::5,&()0/((:29
Name of Second Officer.......coccoveuveniiarennennnn... 3BALAN (COLNELL
Date..... 67 / O/ / 4‘ ...............................................................................
Time YP entered _

premises............... / L. OO ...................................................................
Time YP exited .

prermses/éLL)ff’ .......................................................................................
Name/address of premises/operator............ 64 , ) .
................................. %@ﬁ’(gﬁm&@%% Sheet, ﬁf,ﬁu—m

The YP should have been fully briefed by a responsible officer, including health and
safety, test methodology, and information on crediting and playing a gaming machine
(e.g. Category C for an AGC, which will be £70 prize, though some older models may
be £35 or £25 prize..... Category B2/B3 in betting premises, and the YP should be
encouraged to play at 25 pence stakes to reduce gambling exposure).

Young person’s report to responsible officer (as soon as test is complete):

Point of challenge (if any):

e Iwas challenged when attempting to enter the premises
Description of circumstances e.g. I was asked for ID, I was asked not to

..............................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

© I was allowed to access the premises unchallenged - but I was challenged at
some point between entering the premises and before I put money into a
machine
Description of circumstances e.g. I walked around for at least 60 seconds, in
open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID by staff, I was
asked to leave the premises, I was asked whether I had gambled yet

..............................................................................................................................
..............................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................

¢ I'was allowed to access the premises unchallenged, and allowed to insert
money into a machine — but I was challenged while playing a machine
Description of circumstances e.g. I walked around for at least 60 seconds, in
open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID by staff while
playing the machine, I was asked to leave, I was asked how much I had spent
or how much ' I had won

..............................................................................................................................

53



RESTRICTED -~ OPERATIONS

..............................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

o I was allowed to access the premises unchallenged, and allowed to insert
money into a machine. I played the machine for around five to seven
minutes without being challenged. I then tried to leave the premises but was
challenged while trying to do so.

Description of circumstances e.g. I had walked around for at least 60 seconds,
in open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID when trying to
leave premises, | was asked to leave, I was asked how much I had spent or
how much I had won

.............................................................................................................................
..............................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

¢ [ entered the prggnises with £’O to play machines with. I left the premises

with £.%.... (to be returned to responsible officer).
e (other scenario or additional
[oTa 01111 (30 11) DO

..........................................................................................

Lov

.....................................................

BERIT oLl 1eadng eomEthug s Ih. AGE aca.. .
ifoouxaagco»macé?fwdwzsff?méffé/f#@ fess

.............................................................

54



] . Regulatory Services,
i lml ‘ %/Q/Ofnc//x 2 Public Health
Bartholomew House

Brighton & Hove Bartholomew Square
City Council Brighton
BN1 1JP

C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Ltd. Date: 15 October 2014
4 King Square OurRef:  2014/04154/GAPREM/EH
Brigdwater
Somerset Phone: 01273 292100
TAG 3YF Email: mark.savage-brookes@brighton-

hove.gcsx.gov.uk

Dear Sir/Madam,

Gambling Act 2005 — Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences:
2010/00017/GAAGCN (Unit 1), 2010/00018/GAAGCN (Unit 2),
2010/00021/GAAGCN (Unit 3) & 2010/00022/GAAGCN (Unit 4)
Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-104069-005

Operating licence holder: C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Limited
Re: Regency Arcade, 64 West Street, Brighton, BN1 2RA

We wrote to you on 1% May 2014 to inform you of a test purchase carried out at a
premises operated by you at 64 West Street, Brighton. In this letter we confirmed
that your staff failed to prevent a young person from entering the adult gaming centre
part of the premises and playing a gambling machine.

In the same letter we confirmed that we would conduct a re-test of the premises in
the future. This re-test was carried out on 9" October 2014.

A 16 year old male entered the betting premises at approximately 14:00 hours.
There were two visible members of staff on duty on the premises, one male behind
the cash desk and one other male walking around. In addition to the supervising
officer, there was one other customer in the adult gaming area. The young person
walked around the adult gaming area for a period before playing on two Category C
gambling machines. He exited the premises approximately seven minutes after
entering without being challenged for his age at any time.

As already confirmed in our previous letter, Section 47 of the Gambling Act provides
that a person commits an offence if they permit a child or young person to enter
premises where an adult gaming centre licence has effect. Further, Section 46 of
that Act states that a person commits an offence if they invite or permit a child or
young person to gamble. The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice also require
operators to have policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling, and
that operators must monitor the effectiveness of these.

Telephone: 01273 290000
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

55



Due to this second failure to prevent a young person from entering the premises and
permitting him to gamble, | now write to confirm that we will be applying for a Review
of your Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences.

Notice of our application for Review will be sent to you in the near future. If you wish
to discuss the contents of this letter with me, please contact me on the above contact
details.

Yours sincerely,

- -

Mark Savage-Brookés
Licensing Officer
Environmental Health & Licensing

c.c. Regency Arcade, 64 West Street, Brighton, BN1 2RA (by hand)
Compliance Manager, Gambling Commission (via email)

If requested by a third party, under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the
contents of this letter may be disclosed by Brighton and Hove City Council. For further advice please
contact (01273) 291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.qgov.uk/foi.

56



Apﬁfnd//i/ £

{pa@ 10.1 Code’ or Pracﬂce C Police, and i '
Evidence Ad 1934) S

The Caution

“You do-not-have to.say anything, but it may
harm your defence ii you donoi iaention when

quistioned something which you later rely onin

court. Anything youida say may be.givenin

evitlence.” (para 10.4 Code of Practice €. Polide ;

_and G nmmal Evndence Act 1984 a:a. )

< Yéuare not undar smast and you are not olaligt.d '

to: r1=maln here.

Twould remind you that you are enldled o hlgal

repfesenlallon

O"l]io‘l% <12

(Tf\?nc-, Lits‘,(i‘ Lﬂfs—( S‘{

iﬂk_sﬂ S Moo . Sas

- s o e

Z /\f\)l?i '\'-\')_\rl(‘ A . Ot

(?Hﬁy r&‘\z)m\\)‘ L~ AQ \_Lvt

Seg . LR i"—Lé;/{ Ll

57

r-Q?S‘C b\«ft\r\ 3&’:),\1 \'\c/-\"‘ ‘,.(./1 ’.la‘cr.l"\ i

N T BTl TV e G T S Tk 4



\Lz:lf‘,,;. \ >fk P & 01

%

& Témd A eSe .. T S
-

\/\\:rv SM “”\ ¢ o [QJ{.\'

(‘J;_ “HX L—«:‘L J@f! ~ oo
h;J - Klarb- +*.§t\u—“l' -
\jf{;»? ; (L-_‘/ Lo
’p,{;;ir j l('erO ’

.\'-__________._.—-—'—'—-___-_‘—'-—-_-

e NS
’ :

o

=

58

1 « . .

J_ !

ol CC (\/ ,----__-{k /\n—( L:m.(( N g

! , D) ;
‘\l,\rua' —;\ v e Chasss. :
i

DlA/\?J VS ) 1

Y S (N s | |
nads St . Sl
N\ O A i A 5 = NAS c.&/\\:-\e .

|

ey



APPENDIX Q UNITAL

SCHEDULE 4 Regulation 8(1)

Form of the notice of intention to hold a review to be given to holder of the
premises licence and responsible authorities

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO HOLD A REVIEW OF A
PREMISES LICENCE

This notice is given in accordance with regulations made under section 200 of
the Gambling Act 2005

Notice is hereby given that the following licensing authority:
Brighton & Hove City Council
Whose address is:

Regulatory Services, Environmental Health & Licensing, Bartholomew
House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton, BNI 1)P

Website: www. brlehton hove g0 Juk

:,):' ﬁ_d'.'}di. 4

intends to hold a review under section 20 L. of the Gambling Act 2005 of the
premises licence which is in force at errﬁowmg‘p*‘émlsesw L ATAY

Regency Arcade, = ==

Unit 2

63-64 West Street , s

Brighton N T T | I . F 8
BNI 2RA

JERY
The following type of premises licence has effect in respect of the premlses

Adult Gaming Centre premises licence

The licensing authority intends to hold the review for the following
reasons:

The premises has now been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after
receiving advice following the first. The licensing objective: Protecting children and

other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being
promoted effectively. (A copy of the application is enclosed with this notice).

The following person connected with the licensing authority is able to give further
information about the review:

Mark Savage-Brookes

59



2 + ¥ k4 4

Representations about the proposed review may be made in writing to the licensing
authority by the licence holder, a responsible authority or an interested party during
the period of 28 consecutive days beginning on the date on which the notice of the
authority’s intention to hold the review was given to the licence holder. The last day
of the period for making representations is:

30" November 2014

Following a review under section 201 of the Gambling Act 2005 a licensing authority
may decide to take any of the following kinds of action:

e revoke the licence
e suspend the licence for a specified period not exceeding 3 months
e add, remove or amend a condition attached to the licence

| SERVED A DUPLICATE OF THIS NOTICE UPON ___

C A et 3 5o (AnSSmpsts)
BY POSTING SAME BY FIRST CLASS POST

10 K ) @A

ONTHISDAYSO. OF o CTofe 20 Y . @

i
|
| SIGNED L{{_p_ ________________________________________

60



01 (6553 [ Linbey

Application for a review of a premises licence under the Gambling Act 2005

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

If you are completing this form by hand, please write legibly in block capitals using ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary (marked with the number of the relevant question). You may wish to
keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

Part 1 — Applicant Details

1. Name of Applicant: Mr M Savage-Brookes, Licensing Officer
[Where the applicant is an individual please give your first name(s) as well as your surname]

2. Applicant’s address (home [_] or business [X] [check orﬁck appropnare box_u
Regulatory Services ’ = HES Bl
Environmental Health & Licensing

Bartholomew House |

Bartholomew Square | 30 807 sou
Brighton

Postcode: BN1 1JP Haalth, |

3(a) Are you making the application as a responsible authority? Yes [X] No []

3(b) If the answer to question 3(a) is yes, indicate the type of responsible authority:
Brighton & Hove City Council Licensing Authority

4(a) If the answer to question 3(a) is no, please confirm by ticking or checking the box that you are
applying as an interested party []

4(b) If you have ticked or checked the box in answer to question 4(a), please indicate on what
basis you qualify as an interested party:

N/A

[Where there are further applicants, the information required by questions 1 to 4(b) should be
included on additional sheets attached to this form, and those sheets should be clearly marked
“Details of further applicants”]

' Part 2 — Premises Details
5. Give the trading name used at the licensed premises to which the application for a review

relates: Regency Arcade

61



6. Give the address of the premises or, if not known, give a description of the premises and its
location. Where the premises are a vessel, then (if known) give the place indicated in the premises
licence as the place in the licensing authority’s area where the vessel is wholly or partly situated. [f
possible, any address should include a postcode:

Unit 2
64 West Street
Brighton

Postcode: BN1 2RA

7. Type of premises:

Casino [] Bingo Hall [] Adult Gaming Centre [X]

(arcade restricted to those who are 18
or over)

Betting (track) [] Betting (other) [] Family entertainment centre [_]

(arcade which admits both over and
under 18s)

8. Premises licence (if known): 2010/00018/GAAGCN

9. Give the name of the person(s) or organisation(s) in whose name the licence is held.
C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd.

[Where an individual is the licence holder please give their first name(s) as well as their surname.]

Part 3 — Details of grounds on which a review is being sought
10(a) Please give details of the grounds on which a review is being sought.

This premises is comprised of a Family Entertainment Centre and, to the rear of the premises an
Adult Gaming Centre. The premises holds four separate Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences
in respect of four units situated within the Adult Gaming Centre. The Licensing Team seek to
review all four of the Premises Licences as the units are all located close together and form the
whole Adult Gaming Centre part of the premises.

On 25th April 2014, the premises was subject to a test purchase, conducted by the Brighton &
Hove City Council Licensing Team in partnership with the Gambling Commission. A young person
(sixteen year old male) was able to enter the Adult gaming Centre at 14:06 hours and play on an
age restricted Category C gambling machine. There were two members of staff present during the
time that the young person was on the premises. The young person left the premises ten minutes
later without being challenged at any time by staff.

C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd were written to by Mr Jim Whitelegg, Senior Environmental
Health Officer, Brighton & Hove City Council's Environmental Health & Licensing Team, on 1st
May 2014, to confirm that they had failed this test purchase and had committed offences under
Sections 47 and 46 of the Gambling Act 2005. They were informed that a re-test would occur in
the future (Appendix A).

62




A response to Mr Whitelegg's letter was received on 14th May 2014 (dated 13th May 2014), from
Charles Heal, Director of C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd., confirming that they would do all
they can to prevent this from happening in the future (Appendix B).

On 25th June 2014 a licensing inspection of the premises was carried out by Miss Sarah Cornell,
Senior Licensing Officer from Brighton & Hove City Council. Miss Cornell met with Charles Heal
and discussed the test purchase failure and completed a checklist with him, to ensure that the
requirements and conditions of the Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences were being adhered
to. Advice was given regarding age restricted gaming machines and not allowing anyone under
the age of 18 on to the premises.

On 9th October 2014, the premises was subject to a second test purchase. A different young
person (sixteen year old male) was able to enter the Adult gaming Centre at 14:00 hours and play
on two age restricted Category C gambling machines. There were two visible members of staff on
the premises, one behind the cash desk and one walking around. The young person left the
premises approximately seven minutes later without being challenged at any time by staff
(Appendix C). Mark Savage-Brookes acted as Supervising Officer during this visit and was
present during the whole time that the young person was in the premises. Mr Savage-Brookes
noted what he witnessed straight after the visit (Appendix E).

The premises has now been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after receiving
advice following the first. It is clear that the licensing objective: Protecting children and other
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being promoted effectively.

10(b) Indicate any specific actions you consider the licensing authority should take following the
review, including the reasons why you consider those actions are appropriate:

The Licensing Team feel that it is reasonable and proportionate to seek additional conditions on
the licence or other action that the Licensing Sub Committee feels is appropriate.

Part 4 — Supporting Documents

11. List any supporting documents which you are submitting with the application:
Follow up letter following first failed Test Purchase (Appendix A)

Letter of response received from Charles Heal (Director) (Appendix B)

Test Purchase proforma following second Test Purchase failure (Appendix C)
Follow up letter following second failed Test Purchase (Appendix D)

Supervising Officer notes regarding second Test Purchase (Appendix E)

Part 5 — Declarations and Checklist
Il We confirm that, to the best of my/ our knowledge, the information contained

in this application is true. I/ We understand that it is an offence under section 5
342 of the Gambling Act 2005 to give information which is false or misleading -
in, or in relation to, this application.

I/We understand that it is now necessary to give notice to the licence holder X
and the responsible authorities in relation to the premises

63



Part 6 — Signatures

12. Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. If signing on behalf
of the applicant, please state in what capacity:

o~
{

Signature:

Print Name: Mr M Savage-Brookes
Date: 30/10/2014 (dd/mm/yyyy)
Capacity: Licensing Officer

[Where there is more than one applicant, please use an additional sheet clearly marked
“Signature(s) of further applicant(s)”. The sheet should include, for each additional applicant, all
the information requested in paragraph 12.]

[Where the application is to be submitted in an electronic form, the signature should be generated
electronically and should be a copy of the person’s written signature.]

Part 7 — Contact Details

13(a) Please give the name of a person who can be contacted about the application:
Mark Savage-Brookes

13(b) Please give one or more telephone numbers at which the person identified in question 13(a)
can be contacted:

01273 292100

14. Postal address for correspondence associated with this application:
Environmental Health & Licensing

2" Floor

Bartholomew House

Bartholomew Square

Brighton

Postcode:BN1 1JP

15. If you are happy for correspondence in relation to the application to be sent via e-mail, please
give the e-mail address to which you would like correspondence to be sent:

mark.savage-brookes@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk

64



l @l i Regulatory Services,
L] ram i Ains 2 Public Health
(L=—‘—" v / QRENA K A Bartholomew House

Brighton & Hove Bartholomew Square
City Council Brighton
BN1 1JP

Mr C Heal Date: I* May 2014
C A Heal & Sons Amusements Limited Our Ref: 2014/04154/GAPREM/EH
63-64 West Street )

Brighton Phone: 01273 292438

BNI 2RA Fax: 01273 292196

e-mail: Jim.whitelegg@brighton-hove.gesx.gov.uk

Dear Mr C Heal
‘2vic feve '2:1] A AG-ON
Gambling Act 2005 ~ Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence: 2010/00017/GAAGCN
Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-104069-004

Operating licence holder: C A Heal & Sons Amusements Limited

Re: Regency Arcade,. 63-64 West Street, Brighton BNI 2RA

Brighton and Hove City Council have been working in partnership with the Gambling
Commission to undertake test purchases across a number of different operators, to test the
effectiveness of underage gambling policies and procedures at gambling premises. The tests
were designed to provide us and the Commission with assurance that licensed operators
have sufficient safeguards in place to prevent underage gambling.

On 25 April 2014 we conducted a test purchase at premises operated by you at:

CA Heal and Sons Amusements, 63-64 West Street, Brighton
Time of Test: 14:06

A young male entered the adult gaming centre premises at 14:06. There were two staff
members on duty in the premises, one at the cash desk and the other floor-walking. There
were approximately three other customers on the premises at the time. The young person
played a gaming machine and exited the premises ten minutes after entering without being
challenged for his age at any time.

Section 47 of the Gambling Act provides that a person commits an offence if they permit a
child or young person to enter premises where an adult gaming centre licence has effect.
Further, Section 46 of that Act states that a person commits an offence if they invite or
permit a child or young person to gamble. The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice
also require operators to have policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling,
and that operators must monitor the effectiveness of these.

We request that you respond in writing to this letter by 14 May 2014 to inform us how you
will address the weaknesses in your underage gambling procedures shown by this test.
Please be aware that Brighton and Hove Council intend to conduct a re-test of your
gambling premises in the future, and should that test again show weaknesses, consideration
may be given to initiating a review of your premises Iicence'Telephone: 01273 290000

www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

65



Yours sincerely,

Jim Whitelegg
Senior Environmental Health Officer
Environmental Health & Licensing

c.c. C A Heal & Sons Amusements Ltd, 4 KinsSquare, Bridgwater, Somerset, TA6 3YF
Andy Isaacs, Compliance Manager, Gambling Commission

If requested by a third party, under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the contents
of this letter may be disclosed by Brighton and Hove City Council. For further advice please contact (01273)

s 291207 or ;earch our website on www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foi.

4

66



Appendix 8.

Regency Leisure Arcade
63-64 West Street

—

ON & HOVE C&: COUNCHL \ g”ghton
QRIGHTON & FY7 ) |
BRIS NTAL wea TH S L\CENSEN.\: “ st{( ngzsex
E'.'»‘.\J;F{ONME (TaL HEA

oATE :’\ECENES

| 13" May 2014

| Your Ref: 2014/04154/GAPREM/EH
\

Regulatory Service "
Public Health
Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square
Brighton

BN1 1JP

Email: jim.whitelega@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk
BY EMAIL AND POST

Dear Mr J Whitelegg,

Test Purchase carried out on Regency Leisure Arcade, 63-64 West Street, Brighton,
BN1 2RA.

Gambling Act 2005 - Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence: 2010/00017/GAAGCN
Operating Licence number: 000-001980-N-104069-004

Operating Licence holder: C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Ltd

We acknowledge receipt of your letter dated 1st May 2014 and are very disappointed to
learn we had recently failed a test purchase carried out on the above mentioned premises
on 25th April 2014 at 14:06.

As a company we take this momentary lack of vigilance extremely seriously and as a
result of this recent event have taken advice from Mr Phil Silver, a BACTA compliance
officer for the southern area. He has recommended the following:

¢ Further staff training which highlights the importance of ensuring no persons under
the age of 18 are permitted into the adult areas to participate in gambling.
e A random independent test purchase to ensure training has been effective.

In addition, please note our own internal arrangements:

o A staff meeting was called as soon as was practically possible to discuss the
findings of the test purchase to reiterate to all staff members the seriousness of this
incident and the potential consequences for them as employees, us as a company
and myself as a Company Director.

As mentioned, this is extremely disappointing and embarrassing for us to experience. We
have traded in West Street as an amusement arcade since 1981 and pride ourselves on
our professional relationships with our customers and our compliance and implementation
of BACTA policies.

67



However, we note and respect your findings and will do all we can to ensure this incident
is not repeated.

We therefore welcome a repeat test purchase as you have indicated; confident the
outcome will be different.

| look forward to hearing from you at your earliest possible convenience.

Yours sincerely,

Charles Heal
Director

68



RESTRICTED - OPERATIONS /17/_7/,)@;,75/}X“ -

Proforma - YP name.

Name of First Officer entering Dremises..[l’?.ﬁ.@ '(7‘.5/’) V,é)&é “\5'@0%@5
Name of Second Officer........ccoeeeueeereinieninnnnnne SBALAN (CRNVELL

Date..... 9// O/ / [f ...............................................................................

Time YP entered

Premises............... / lt.:. OC ...................................................................
Time YP exited e o

prexmses/Z’LC’q .......................................................................................
Name/address of premises/operator............ &4 L { .
................................. %{gﬁr Lheedk, hEsrobeet, Brghtan

The YP should have been fully briefed by a responsible officer, including health and
safety, test methodology, and information on crediting and playing a gaming machine
(e.g. Category C for an AGC, which will be £70 prize, though some older models may
be £35 or £25 prize..... Category B2/B3 in betting premises, and the YP should be
encouraged to play at 25 pence stakes to reduce gambling exposure).

Young person’s report to responsible officer (as soon as test is complete):

Point of challenge (if any):

e Iwas challenged when attempting to enter the premises
Description of circumstances e.g. I was asked for ID, I was asked not to

..............................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

e I was allowed to access the premises unchallenged - but I was challenged at
some point between entering the premises and before 1 put money into a
machine
Description of circumstances e.g. I walked around for at least 60 seconds, in
open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID by staff, I was
asked to leave the premises, I was asked whether I had gambled yet

..............................................................................................................................
..............................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................

e I was allowed to access the premises unchallenged, and allowed to insert
money into a machine — but I was challenged while playing a machine
Description of circumstances e.g. I walked around for at least 60 seconds, in
open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID by staff while
playing the machine, I was asked to leave, I was asked how much I had spent
or how much ' I had won

..............................................................................................................................

69



RESTRICTED - OPERATIONS

..............................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

o I was allowed to access the premises unchallenged, and allowed to insert
money into a machine. I played the machine for around five to seven
minutes without being challenged. 1 then tried to leave the premises but was
challenged while trying to do so.

Description of circumstances e.g. I had walked around for at least 60 seconds,
in open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID when trying to
leave premises, I was asked to leave, I was asked how much I had spent or
how much I had won

..............................................................................................................................
..............................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

e [ entered the pr%nises with £IO to play machines with. I left the premises

with £..5%2.... (to be returned to responsible officer).
s (other scenario or additional
(e78] 11111111 1) FO P

................................................................................................................

.............................................................

70



) ' Regulatory Services,
i l@[ ‘ /4/9/136775//)( J), Public Health
Bartholomew House

righton & Hove Bartholomew Square
Clty Council Brighton
BN1 1JP

C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Ltd. Date: 15 October 2014
4 King Square OurRef:  2014/04154/GAPREM/EH
Brigdwater
Somerset Phone: 01273 292100
TAB 3YF Email: mark.savage-brookes@brighton-

hove.gcsx.gov.uk

Dear Sir/Madam,

Gambling Act 2005 — Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences:
2010/00017/GAAGCN (Unit 1), 2010/00018/GAAGCN (Unit 2),
2010/00021/GAAGCN (Unit 3) & 2010/00022/GAAGCN (Unit 4)
Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-104069-005

Operating licence holder: C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Limited
Re: Regency Arcade, 64 West Street, Brighton, BN1 2RA

We wrote to you on 1% May 2014 to inform you of a test purchase carried out at a
premises operated by you at 64 West Street, Brighton. In this letter we confirmed
that your staff failed to prevent a young person from entering the adult gaming centre
part of the premises and playing a gambling machine.

In the same letter we confirmed that we would conduct a re-test of the premises in
the future. This re-test was carried out on 9" October 2014,

A 16 year old male entered the betting premises at approximately 14:00 hours.
There were two visible members of staff on duty on the premises, one male behind
the cash desk and one other male walking around. In addition to the supervising
officer, there was one other customer in the adult gaming area. The young person
walked around the adult gaming area for a period before playing on two Category C
gambling machines. He exited the premises approximately seven minutes after
entering without being challenged for his age at any time.

As already confirmed in our previous letter, Section 47 of the Gambling Act provides
that a person commits an offence if they permit a child or young person to enter
premises where an adult gaming centre licence has effect. Further, Section 46 of
that Act states that a person commits an offence if they invite or permit a child or
young person to gamble. The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice also require
operators to have policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling, and
that operators must monitor the effectiveness of these.

Telephone: 01273 290000
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

71



Due to this second failure to prevent a young person from entering the premises and
permitting him to gamble, | now write to confirm that we will be applying for a Review
of your Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences.

Notice of our application for Review will be sent to you in the near future. If you wish
to discuss the contents of this letter with me, please contact me on the above contact
details.

Yours sincerely,

Mark Savage-Brookes
Licensing Officer
Environmental Health & Licensing

c.c. Regency Arcade, 64 West Street, Brighton, BN1 2RA (by hand)
Compliance Manager, Gambling Commission (via email)

If requested by a third party, under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the
contents of this letter may be disclosed by Brighton and Hove City Council. For further advice please
contact (01273) 291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.qov.uk/foi.

72



(pana 16. 1‘Code of Pradk'é G, 'Pollce a

/7),0/36/’)67//,{/ E . : : erdt>m,|a Act 1984}

The Caution

-~ "You do not.have to say anything, but it may
1 “harm your defence if'you: do not: mention when
] questioned something which yousdater-vely on in. -
| court. Anything you do say may be given in
v eviderice.” (para 10.4-Code of: Pl actlce o Pullce
arid-Griminal Evndeunc A

zi |§l~ypufa,re.-nqt ohlig;yseg.

H Youarenotunders:
10 remain’ ‘here:t %

Jwould remmd‘you\that you are ntlﬂed 1o’ Iegal
: renresentation. o e :

ot

e T N e e il T T gy ’ . e :

c’a"’l'i%){l% 12

&R-TAC—\ LE@S.«? Lese ¥ S‘f

infa_sl' K Mos . Nos
S e o
7 nnal3s ’vq\rlr,;\:\;) e,

sthar ccloasr o o8 L

Sig.. L% ("LAA L,flm;\‘Q
r-Q‘(Sk‘ k\_,dt\r\ 3&9,\ \’\c/\,’ T,(.-fl V‘le‘cr.!f\f.




| I US|

cp COTV LA o \m(mj
_L}SQ)_\& ‘hs C &‘\\A,Sx_\ E

N O ,5{ ‘}u N\AD . i n‘l (,<.r
VV\?.i s, ¥ ‘\ A .}l_ Sl

N\ ﬁ A = NAD CL\;«G‘;
(v,

x¢. -
L~ ’i’al\/\_«t/{ A ede T Sn

T - ot B

(T- "/L( L\—de T So
;Lt - Klecte +, st
,/\,Q ("L I Lxc,\‘()
/_@4,: J 1%

.

t

74



APPENDIX A ONIT

SCHEDULE 4 Regulation 8( 1)

Form of the notice of intention to hold a review to be given to holder of the
premises licence and responsible authorities

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO HOLD A REVIEW OF A
PREMISES LICENCE

This notice is given in accordance with regulations made under section 200 of
the Gambling Act 2005

Notice is hereby given that the following licensing authority:
Brighton & Hove City Council
Whose address is:

Regulatory Services, Environmental Health & Licensing, Bartholomew
House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton, BN1 |]JP

Website: www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

intends to hold a review under section 201 of the Gambling Act 2005 of the
premises licence which is in force at the following premises:

Regency Arcade,
Unit 3

63-64 West Street
Brighton

BNI 2RA

The following type of premises licence has effect in respect of the premises:

Adult Gaming Centre premises licence

The licensing authority intends to hold the review for the following
reasons:

The premises has how been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after
receiving advice following the first. The licensing objective: Protecting children and

other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being
promoted effectively. (A copy of the application is enclosed with this notice).

The following person connected with the licensing authority is able to give further
information about the review:

Mark Savage-Brookes

75



» =
= = - i~

Representations about the proposed review may be made in writing to the licensing
authority by the licence holder, a responsible authority or an interested party during
the period of 28 consecutive days beginning on the date on which the notice of the
authority’s intention to hold the review was given to the licence holder. The last day
of the period for making representations is:

30® November 2014

Following a review under section 20| of the Gambling Act 2005 a licensing authority
may decide to take any of the following kinds of action:

e revoke the licence

e suspend the licence for a specified period not exceeding 3 months
e add, remove or amend a condition attached to the licence

e = 101

L

<A Her 3 Socd (,ﬁm,gs_m:aﬁs) 1D

76



- ) f , Ve . 'l
¢ 1] "L . { ~1 TN ) y y = /o P ; Vs

Application for a review of a premises licence under the Gambling Act 2005

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

If you are completing this form by hand, please write legibly in block capitals using ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary (marked with the number of the relevant question). You may wish to
keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

Part 1 — Applicant Details

1. Name of Applicant: Mr M Savage-Brookes, Licensing Officer
[Where the applicant is an individual please give your first name(s) as well as your surname]

2. Applicant’s address (home [ ] or business [X] [gheck or tick appropriate box])
Regulatory Services | & . R LT 4
Environmental Health & Licensing | o R ALY L OUNG
Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square
Brighton

Postcode: BN1 1JP

KINo E],.___f’_ J

3(a) Are you making the application as a responsible authorit_);? Yes

3(b) If the answer to question 3(a) is yes, indicate the type of responsible authority:
Brighton & Hove City Council Licensing Authority

4(a) If the answer to question 3(a) is no, please confirm by ticking or checking the box that you are
applying as an interested party [] ‘

4(b) If you have ticked or checked the box in answer to question 4(a), please indicate on what
basis you qualify as an interested party:

N/A

[Where there are further applicants, the information required by questions 1 to 4(b) should be
included on additional sheets attached to this form, and those sheets should be clearly marked
“Details of further applicants”]

Part 2 — Premises Details

5. Give the trading name used at the licensed premises to which the application for a review
relates: Regency Arcade

77



6. Give the address of the premises or, if not known, give a description of the premises and its
location. Where the premises are a vessel, then (if known) give the place indicated in the premises
licence as the place in the licensing authority’s area where the vessel is wholly or partly situated. |If
possible, any address should include a postcode:

Unit 3
64 West Street
Brighton

Postcode: BN1 2RA

7. Type of premises:
Casino [_] Bingo Hall [] Adult Gaming Centre [X]

(arcade restricted to those who are 18
orover)

Betting (track) [] Betting (other) [] Family entertainment centre []

(arcade which admits both over and
under 18s)

8. Premises licence (if known): 2010/00021/GAAGCN

9. Give the name of the person(s) or organisation(s) in whose name the licence is held.
C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd.

[Where an individual is the licence holder please give their first name(s) as well as their surname.]

Part 3 — Details of grounds on which a review is being sought
10(a) Please give details of the grounds on which a review is being sought.

This premises is comprised of a Family Entertainment Centre and, to the rear of the premises an
Adult Gaming Centre. The premises holds four separate Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences
in respect of four units situated within the Adult Gaming Centre. The Licensing Team seek to
review all four of the Premises Licences as the units are all located close together and form the
whole Adult Gaming Centre part of the premises.

On 25th April 2014, the premises was subject to a test purchase, conducted by the Brighton &
Hove City Council Licensing Team in partnership with the Gambling Commission. A young person
(sixteen year old male) was able to enter the Adult gaming Centre at 14:06 hours and play on an
age restricted Category C gambling machine. There were two members of staff present during the
time that the young person was on the premises. The young person left the premises ten minutes
later without being challenged at any time by staff.

C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd were written to by Mr Jim Whitelegg, Senior Environmental
Health Officer, Brighton & Hove City Council's Environmental Health & Licensing Team, on 1st
May 2014, to confirm that they had failed this test purchase and had committed offences under
Sections 47 and 46 of the Gambling Act 2005. They were informed that a re-test would occur in
the future (Appendix A).

78



A response to Mr Whitelegg's letter was received on 14th May 2014 (dated 13th May 2014), from
Charles Heal, Director of C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd., confirming that they would do all
they can to prevent this from happening in the future (Appendix B).

On 25th June 2014 a licensing inspection of the premises was carried out by Miss Sarah Cornell,
Senior Licensing Officer from Brighton & Hove City Council. Miss Cornell met with Charles Heal
and discussed the test purchase failure and completed a checklist with him, to ensure that the
requirements and conditions of the Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences were being adhered
to. Advice was given regarding age restricted gaming machines and not allowing anyone under
the age of 18 on to the premises.

On 9th October 2014, the premises was subject to a second test purchase. A different young
person (sixteen year old male) was able to enter the Adult gaming Centre at 14:00 hours and play
on two age restricted Category C gambling machines. There were two visible members of staff on
the premises, one behind the cash desk and one walking around. The young person left the
premises approximately seven minutes later without being challenged at any time by staff
(Appendix C). Mark Savage-Brookes acted as Supervising Officer during this visit and was
present during the whole time that the young person was in the premises. Mr Savage-Brookes
noted what he witnessed straight after the visit (Appendix E).

The premises has now been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after receiving
advice following the first. It is clear that the licensing objective: Protecting children and other
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being promoted effectively.

10(b) Indicate any specific actions you consider the licensing authority should take following the
review, including the reasons why you consider those actions are appropriate:

The Licensing Team feel that it is reasonable and proportionate to seek additional conditions on
the licence or other action that the Licensing Sub Committee feels is appropriate.

Part 4 — Supporting Documents

11. List any supporting documents which you are submitting with the application:
Follow up letter following first failed Test Purchase (Appendix A)

Letter of response received from Charles Heal (Director) (Appendix B)

Test Purchase proforma following second Test Purchase failure (Appendix C)
Follow up letter following second failed Test Purchase (Appendix D)

Supervising Officer notes regarding second Test Purchase (Appendix E)

Part 5 — Declarations and Checklist

Il We confirm that, to the best of my/ our knowledge, the information contained

in this application is true. I/ We understand that it is an offence under section X
342 of the Gambling Act 2005 to give information which is false or misleading

in, or in relation to, this application.

I/We understand that it is now necessary to give notice to the licence holder <
and the responsible authorities in relation to the premises

79



Part 6 — Signatures

12. Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. If signing on behalf
of the applicant, please state in what capacity:

L««{WLA

{

Signature:

Print Name: Mr M Savage-Brookes
Date: 30/10/2014 (dd/mm/tyyyy)
Capacity: Licensing Officer

[Where there is more than one applicant, please use an additional sheet clearly marked
“Signature(s) of further applicant(s)”. The sheet should include, for each additional applicant, all
the information requested in paragraph 12.]

[Where the application is to be submitted in an electronic form, the signature should be generated
electronically and should be a copy of the person’s written signature.]

Part 7 — Contact Details

13(a) Please give the name of a person who can be contacted about the application:
Mark Savage-Brookes

13(b) Please give one or more telephone numbers at which the person identified in question 13(a)
can be contacted:

01273 292100

14. Postal address for correspondence associated with this application:
Environmental Health & Licensing

2" Floor

Bartholomew House

Bartholomew Square

Brighton

Postcode:BN1 1JP

15. If you are happy for correspondence in relation to the application to be sent via e-mail, please
give the e-mail address to which you would like correspondence to be sent:

mark.savage-brookes@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk

80



! ! I Regulatory Services,
: Public Health
A@Of N X ﬂ ) Bartholomew House

Brighton & Hove Bartholomew Square
City Council Brighton
BN1 1JP

Mr C Heal Date: I* May 2014
C A Heal & Sons Amusements Limited OurRef:  2014/04154/GAPREM/EH
63-64 West Street

Brighton Phone: 01273 292438

BNI 2RA Fax: 01273 292196

e-mail: Jim.whitelegg@brighton-hove gesx.gov.uk

Dear Mr C Heal
*1:,-;'»0/0@:"2:1/ =AAGC-ON

Gambling Act 2005 ~ Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence: 2010/00017/GAAGCN
Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-104069-004

Operating licence holder: C A Heal & Sons Amusements Limited

Re: Regency Arcade. 63-64 West Street, Brighton BNI 2RA

Brighton and Hove City Council have been working in partnership with the Gambling
Commission to undertake test purchases across a number of different operators, to test the
effectiveness of underage gambling policies and procedures at gambling premises. The tests
were designed to provide us and the Commission with assurance that licensed operators
have sufficient safeguards in place to prevent underage gambling.

On 25 April 2014 we conducted a test purchase at premises operated by you at:

CA Heal and Sons Amusements, 63-64 West Street, Brighton
Time of Test: 14:06

A young male entered the adult gaming centre premises at 14:06. There were two staff
members on duty in the premises, one at the cash desk and the other floor-walking. There
were approximately three other customers on the premises at the time. The young person
played a gaming machine and exited the premises ten minutes after entering without being
challenged for his age at any time.

Section 47 of the Gambling Act provides that a person commits an offence if they permit a
child or young person to enter premises where an adult gaming centre licence has effect.
Further, Section 46 of that Act states that a person commiits an offence if they invite or
permit a child or young person to gamble. The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice
also require operators to have policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling,
and that operators must monitor the effectiveness of these.

We request that you respond in writing to this letter by 14 May 2014 to inform us how you
will address the weaknesses in your underage gambling procedures shown by this test.
Please be aware that Brighton and Hove Council intend to conduct a re-test of your
gambling premises in the future, and should that test again show weaknesses, consideration

may be given to initiating a review of your premises ﬁcence‘Telephone: 01273 290000
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

81



Yours sincerely,

Jim Whitelegg
Senior Environmental Health Officer
Environmental Health & Licensing

c.c C A Heal & Sons Amusements Ltd, 4 KinaSquare, Bridgwater, Somerset, TA6 3YF
Andy Isaacs, Compliance Manager, Gambling Commission

If requested by a third party, under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the contents
of this letter may be disclosed by Brighton and Hove City Council. For further advice please contact (01273)
291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foi.

82



Hppendix 8.

Regency Leisure Arcade
. 63-64 West Street
ci | Brighton
East Sussex
BN1 2RA

TN & HOVE GITY COUN
A 14

BRI .
. EALTH & LICENSING

ENV'\RONMENTA\. H

DATE RECEWED

| 4aqth
L MAY 20t 1\13 May 2014
“ \Your Ref: 2014/04154/GAPREM/EH

\

Regulatory Service
Public Health
Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square
Brighton

BN1 1JP

Email: iim.whitelega@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk
BY EMAIL AND POST

Dear Mr J Whitelegg,

Test Purchase carried out on Regency Leisure Arcade, 63-64 West Street, Brighton,
BN1 2RA.

Gambling Act 2005 - Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence: 2010/00017/GAAGCN
Operating Licence number: 000-001980-N-104069-004

Operating Licence holder: C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Ltd

We acknowledge receipt of your letter dated 1st May 2014 and are very disappointed to
learn we had recently failed a test purchase carried out on the above mentioned premises
on 25th April 2014 at 14:06.

As a company we take this momentary lack of vigilance extremely seriously and as a
result of this recent event have taken advice from Mr Phil Silver, a BACTA compliance
officer for the southern area. He has recommended the following:

e Further staff training which highlights the importance of ensuring no persons under
the age of 18 are permitted into the adult areas to participate in gambling.
¢ A random independent test purchase to ensure training has been effective.

In addition, please note our own internal arrangements:

e A staff meeting was called as soon as was practically possible to discuss the
findings of the test purchase to reiterate to all staff members the seriousness of this
incident and the potential consequences for them as employees, us as a company
and myself as a Company Director.

As mentioned, this is extremely disappointing and embarrassing for us to experience. We
have traded in West Street as an amusement arcade since 1981 and pride ourselves on
our professional relationships with our customers and our compliance and implementation
of BACTA policies.

83



However, we note and respect your findings and will do all we can to ensure this incident
is not repeated.

We therefore welcome a repeat test purchase as you have indicated; confident the
outcome will be different.

| look forward to hearing from you at your earliest possible convenience.

oy Hh.

Yours sincerely,

Charles Heal
Director

84



RESTRICTED — OPERATIONS /7/3/05/,(//,( -

Proforma - YP name.

Name of First Officer entering premises..M’f?.@éﬂ..iff). VAG%:E,(@O/Z@S
Name of Second Officer........ccceoeacecaieceoneennene SBALAH (ONELL

vate... 1O/

................................................................................................

Time YP entered

Premises............... / Lf ' GO ...................................................................
Time YP exited ,

prexmses/éLOq .......................................................................................
Name/address of premises/operator............ &4 , , ,
................................. z%f;c?r Lheedk, Lkak.oheet, Brghtan

The YP should have been fully briefed by a responsible officer, including health and
safety, test methodology, and information on crediting and playing a gaming machine
(e.g. Category C for an AGC, which will be £70 prize, though some older models may
be £35 or £25 prize..... Category B2/B3 in betting premises, and the YP should be
encouraged to play at 25 pence stakes to reduce gambling exposure).

Young person’s report to responsible officer (as soon as test is complete):

Point of challenge (if any):

o I was challenged when attempting to enter the premises
Description of circumstances e.g. I was asked for ID, I was asked not to

..............................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

e [ was allowed to access the premises unchallenged - but I was challenged at
some point between entering the premises and before I put money into a
machine
Description of circumstances e.g. I walked around for at least 60 seconds, in
open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID by staff, I was
asked to leave the premises, I was asked whether I had gambled yet

..............................................................................................................................
..............................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................

e Iwas allowed to access the premises unchallenged, and allowed to insert
money inte a machine — but I was challenged while playing a machine
Description of circumstances e.g. I walked around for at least 60 seconds, in
open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID by staff while
playing the machine, I was asked to leave, I was asked how much I had spent
or how much I had won

..............................................................................................................................

85



]

RESTRICTED -~ OPERATIONS

..............................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

I was allowed to access the premises unchallenged, and allowed to insert
money into a machine. I played the machine for around five to seven
minutes without being challenged. I then tried to leave the premises but was
challenged while trying to do so.

Description of circumstances e.g. I had walked around for at least 60 seconds,
in open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID when trying to
leave premises, I was asked to leave, I was asked how much I had spent or
how much I had won

..............................................................................................................................
..............................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

I entered the premises with £IO to play machines with. I left the premises
with £...%<..... (to be returned to responsible officer).

(other scenario or additional
comments)

........................................................................

..........................................................................................

86



' ) ' Regulatory Services,
&I@I& /4/9/95/96//)( L. Public Health

Bartholomew House

Brighton & Hove Bartholomew Square
City Council Brighton
BN1 1JP

C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Ltd. Date: 15 October 2014
4 King Square OurRef:  2014/04154/GAPREM/EH
Brigdwater
Somerset Phone: 01273 292100
TAB 3YF Email: mark.savage-brookes@brighton-

hove.gcsx.gov.uk

Dear Sir/Madam,

Gambling Act 2005 — Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences:
2010/00017/GAAGCN (Unit 1), 2010/00018/GAAGCN (Unit 2),
2010/00021/GAAGCN (Unit 3) & 2010/00022/GAAGCN (Unit 4)
Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-104069-005

Operating licence holder: C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Limited
Re: Regency Arcade, 64 West Street, Brighton, BN1 2RA

We wrote to you on 1% May 2014 to inform you of a test purchase carried out ata
premises operated by you at 64 West Street, Brighton. In this letter we confirmed
that your staff failed to prevent a young person from entering the adult gaming centre
part of the premises and playing a gambling machine.

In the same letter we confirmed that we would conduct a re-test of the premises in
the future. This re-test was carried out on 9" October 2014.

A 16 year old male entered the betting premises at approximately 14:00 hours.
There were two visible members of staff on duty on the premises, one male behind
the cash desk and one other male walking around. In addition to the supervising
officer, there was one other customer in the adult gaming area. The young person
walked around the adult gaming area for a period before playing on two Category C
gambling machines. He exited the premises approximately seven minutes after
entering without being challenged for his age at any time.

As already confirmed in our previous letter, Section 47 of the Gambling Act provides
that a person commits an offence if they permit a child or young person to enter
premises where an adult gaming centre licence has effect. Further, Section 46 of
that Act states that a person commits an offence if they invite or permit a child or
young person to gamble. The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice also require
operators to have policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling, and
that operators must monitor the effectiveness of these.

Telephone: 01273 290000
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

87



Due to this second failure to prevent a young person from entering the premises and
permitting him to gamble, | now write to confirm that we will be applying for a Review
of your Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences.

Notice of our application for Review will be sent to you in the near future. If you wish
to discuss the contents of this letter with me, please contact me on the above contact
details.

Yours sincerely,

Mark Savage-Brookes
Licensing Officer
Environmental Health & Licensing

c.c. Regency Arcade, 64 West Street, Brighton, BN1 2RA (by hand)
Compliance Manager, Gambling Commission (via email)

If requested by a third party, under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the
contents of this letter may be disclosed by Brighton and Hove City Council. For further advice please
contact (01273) 291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.gov. uk/foi.

88



{pema 10.1 Code of Pmchue . Police and:Griminal._ .

A,Oﬁf/’)d//{/ E i Evidence Af‘t_1984) ' PR R anle g :

i
The Caution i
X . ! . I{
i “You do niot have o say anything, butitmay - &'
] harm your defence if youdonot:mentionwhan
; 5 tuestioned something which youlater rely onin.
| : : couri Anything you- do say may ‘be‘given'in_
v and Cﬁrhmal 'Emdence At 1984 r

‘You are not under an-esk anld yo »are not nhligeri

§ .~ ioremain here. : : _
. j . f;A - ) would remind you that you are: entltled io legal

E g ,lepreaentatlon.r d :

§ £

t

!

G |
c:")]@'t% 1< 1|2 :
KY&T/‘L—\ Lf i S‘_s(i | s 5‘( S{ E

‘ rdse oK Mooz 1

Z_ M;pl?ﬁ N - & VX ¥

R)
sther csdoasr oo o L
St X \L/M hriaod :
A?Sk bth\r\ i\)fp,-,' \'\c/\d‘ ‘,.(wl

89



01

Q
T

\/ L._j\- /\.:{ (ac»(( ot
-

Syl
{

_'\l.,x&_\..—%>_\ ‘\ ‘hs st

_- )‘)lhnl'i_} V\A’.}c‘(m';e
nowt o NAD . l = ‘_,<_r

V\/\xi 7_ S‘} ) ,1{, lf\rSva\Lv

WAoo i A — N> (‘L\\:\.el
v,

5

L~ «i—eMJ A ede. T S>>

\_:i\,:l G e ~L—; e &

J 66\,0&& +"ﬂzxu’l

»A,? FL I L\(A‘n

}p,zg,vl j( lLlL’(,O :

90




DIX K UNIT

SCHEDULE 4 Regulation 8(|

APPe

Form of the notice of intention to hold a review to be given to holder of the
premises licence and responsible authorities

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO HOLD A REVIEW OF A
PREMISES LICENCE

This notice is given in accordance with regulations made under section 200 of
the Gambling Act 2005

Notice is hereby given that the following licensing authority:
Brighton & Hove City Council
Whose address is:

Regulatory Services, Environmental Health & Licensing, Bartholomew
House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton, BN 1P

VWebsite: www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

intends to hold a review under section 201 of the Gambling Act 2005 of the
premises licence which is in force at the following premises:

Regency Arcade,
Unit 4

63-64 West Street
Brighton

BNi 2RA

The following type of premises licence has effect in respect of the premises:

Adult Gaming Centre premises licence

The licensing authority intends to hold the review for the following
reasons:

The premises has now been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after
receiving advice following the first. The licensing objective: Protecting children and

other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being
promoted effectively. (A copy of the application is enclosed with this notice).

The following person connected with the licensing authority is able to give further
information about the review:

Mark Savage-Brookes

91



L B 2 X
» g % >

Representations about the proposed review may be made in writing to the licensing
authority by the licence holder, a responsible authority or an interested party during
the period of 28 consecutive days beginning on the date on which the notice of the
authority’s intention to hold the review was given to the licence holder. The last day
of the period for making representations is:

30" November 2014

Following a review under section 201 of the Gambling Act 2005 a licensing authority
may decide to take any of the following kinds of action:

e revoke the licence
e suspend the licence for a specified period not exceeding 3 months
e add, remove or amend a condition attached to the licence

0 09 2t B AT

......................................

o e o e o P e L e 0 B LT

92



20l |OBF HAls/

Application for a review of a premises licence under the Gambling Act 2005

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

If you are completing this form by hand, please write legibly in block capitals using ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary (marked with the number of the relevant question). You may wish to
keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

Part 1 — Applicant Details

1. Name of Applicant: Mr M Savage-Brookes, Licensing Officer
[Where the applicant is an individual please give your first name(s) as well as your surname]

2. Applicant’s address (home [_] or business X [cpeck or. tick appropriate box])
Regulatory Services Lo
Environmental Health & Licensing
Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square

Brighton

Postcode: BN1 1JP

3(a) Are you making the application as a responsible authority? Yes X No []

3(b) If the answer to question 3(a) is yes, indicate the type of responsible authority:
Brighton & Hove City Council Licensing Authority

4(a) If the answer to question 3(a) is no, please confirm by ticking or checking the box that you are
applying as an interested party [_] _

4(b) If you have ticked or checked the box in answer to question 4(a), please indicate on what
basis you qualify as an interested party:

N/A

[Where there are further applicants, the information required by questions 1 to 4(b) should be
included on additional sheets attached to this form, and those sheets should be clearly marked
“Details of further applicants’]

|Part 2 — Premises Details
5. Give the trading name used at the licensed premises to which the application for a review

relates: Regency Arcade

93



6. Give the address of the premises or, if not known, give a description of the premises and its
location. Where the premises are a vessel, then (if known) give the place indicated in the premises
licence as the place in the licensing authority’s area where the vessel is wholly or partly situated. If
possible, any address should include a postcode:

Unit 4
64 West Street
Brighton

Postcode: BN1 2RA

7. Type of premises:

Casino [] Bingo Hall [] Adult Gaming Centre [X]

(arcade restricted to those who are 18
or over)

Betting (track) [] Betting (other) [] Family entertainment centre []

(arcade which admits both over and
under 18s)

8. Premises licence (if known): 2010/00022/GAAGCN

9. Give the name of the person(s) or organisation(s) in whose name the licence is held.
C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd.

[Where an individual is the licence holder please give their first name(s) as well as their surname.]

Part 3 — Details of grounds on which a review is being sought
10(a) Please give details of the grounds on which a review is being sought.

This premises is comprised of a Family Entertainment Centre and, to the rear of the premises an
Adult Gaming Centre. The premises holds four separate Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences
in respect of four units situated within the Adult Gaming Centre. The Licensing Team seek to
review all four of the Premises Licences as the units are all located close together and form the
whole Adult Gaming Centre part of the premises.

On 25th April 2014, the premises was subject to a test purchase, conducted by the Brighton &
Hove City Council Licensing Team in partnership with the Gambling Commission. A young person
(sixteen year old male) was able to enter the Adult gaming Centre at 14:06 hours and play on an
age restricted Category C gambling machine. There were two members of staff present during the
time that the young person was on the premises. The young person left the premises ten minutes
later without being challenged at any time by staff.

C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd were written to by Mr Jim Whitelegg, Senior Environmental
Health Officer, Brighton & Hove City Council's Environmental Health & Licensing Team, on 1st
May 2014, to confirm that they had failed this test purchase and had committed offences under
Sections 47 and 46 of the Gambling Act 2005. They were informed that a re-test would occur in
the future (Appendix A).

94




A response to Mr Whitelegg's letter was received on 14th May 2014 (dated 13th May 2014), from
Charles Heal, Director of C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd., confirming that they would do all
they can to prevent this from happening in the future (Appendix B).

On 25th June 2014 a licensing inspection of the premises was carried out by Miss Sarah Cornell,
Senior Licensing Officer from Brighton & Hove City Council. Miss Cornell met with Charles Heal
and discussed the test purchase failure and completed a checklist with him, to ensure that the
requirements and conditions of the Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences were being adhered
to. Advice was given regarding age restricted gaming machines and not allowing anyone under
the age of 18 on to the premises.

On 9th October 2014, the premises was subject to a second test purchase. A different young
person (sixteen year old male) was able to enter the Adult gaming Centre at 14:00 hours and play
on two age restricted Category C gambling machines. There were two visible members of staff on
the premises, one behind the cash desk and one walking around. The young person left the
premises approximately seven minutes later without being challenged at any time by staff
(Appendix C). Mark Savage-Brookes acted as Supervising Officer during this visit and was
present during the whole time that the young person was in the premises. Mr Savage-Brookes
noted what he witnessed straight after the visit (Appendix E).

The premises has now been the subject to two test purchases and failed both after receiving
advice following the first. It is clear that the licensing objective: Protecting children and other
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, is not being promoted effectively.

10(b) Indicate any specific actions you consider the licensing authority should take following the
review, including the reasons why you consider those actions are appropriate:

The Licensing Team feel that it is reasonable and proportionate to seek additional conditions on
the licence or other action that the Licensing Sub Committee feels is appropriate.

Part 4 — Supporting Documents

11. List any supporting documents which you are submitting with the application:
Follow up letter following first failed Test Purchase (Appendix A)

Letter of response received from Charles Heal (Director) (Appendix B)

Test Purchase proforma following second Test Purchase failure (Appendix C)
Follow up letter following second failed Test Purchase (Appendix D)

Supervising Officer notes regarding second Test Purchase (Appendix E)

Part 5 — Declarations and Checklist
|

| We confirm that, to the best of my/ our knowledge, the information contained
X

in this application is true. I/ We understand that it is an offence under section
342 of the Gambling Act 2005 to give information which is false or misleading
in, or in relation to, this application.

I/We understand that it is now necessary to give notice to the licence holder 52
and the responsible authorities in relation to the premises

95



Part 6 — Signatures

12. Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. If signing on behalf
of the applicant, please state in what capacity:

ol

!

Signature:

Print Name: Mr M Savage-Brookes
Date: 30/10/2014 (dd/mm/yyyy)
Capacity: Licensing Officer

[Where there is more than one applicant, please use an additional sheet clearly marked
“Signature(s) of further applicant(s)”. The sheet should include, for each additional applicant, all
the information requested in paragraph 12.]

[Where the application is to be submitted in an electronic form, the signature should be generated
electronically and should be a copy of the person’s written signature.]

Part 7 — Contact Details

13(a) Please give the name of a person who can be contacted about the application:
Mark Savage-Brookes

13(b) Please give one or more telephone numbers at which the person identified in question 13(a)
can be contacted:

01273 292100

14. Postal address for correspondence associated with this application:
Environmental Health & Licensing

2" Floor

Bartholomew House

Bartholomew Square

Brighton

Postcode:BN1 1JP

15. If you are happy for correspondence in relation to the application to be sent via e-mail, please
give the e-mail address to which you would like correspondence to be sent:

mark.savage-brookes@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk

96



! ! l Regulatory Services,
» Public Health
/4/'7/O€/) (%/ X ﬂ ' Bartholomew House

Brighton & Hove Bartholomew Square
City Council Brighton
BN1 1JP
Mr C Heal Date: 1* May 2014
C A Heal & Sons Amusements Limited Our Ref: 2014/04154/GAPREM/EH
63-64 West Street
Brighton Phone: 01273 292438
BNI 2RA Fax: 01273 292196
e-mail: Jim.whitelegg@brighton-hove.gesx.gov.uk

Dear Mr C Heal

avic fovez [ GARCIN
Gambling Act 2005 — Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence: 2010/00017/GAAGCN
Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-1 04069-004

Operating licence holder: C A Heal & Sons Amusements Limited

Re: Regency Arcade, 63-64 West Street, Brighton BNI 2RA

Brighton and Hove City Council have been working in partnership with the Gambling
Commission to undertake test purchases across a number of different operators, to test the
effectiveness of underage gambling policies and procedures at gambling premises. The tests
were designed to provide us and the Commission with assurance that licensed operators
have sufficient safeguards in place to prevent underage gambling.

On 25 April 2014 we conducted a test purchase at premises operated by you at:

CA Heal and Sons Amusements, 63-64 West Street, Brighton
Time of Test: 14:06

A young male entered the adult gaming centre premises at 14:06. There were two staff
members on duty in the premises, one at the cash desk and the other floor-walking. There
were approximately three other customers on the premises at the time. The young person
played a gaming machine and exited the premises ten minutes after entering without being
challenged for his age at any time.

Section 47 of the Gambling Act provides that a person commits an offence if they permit a
child or young person to enter premises where an adult gaming centre licence has effect.
Further, Section 46 of that Act states that a person commits an offence if they invite or
permit a child or young person to gamble. The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice
also require operators to have policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling,
and that operators must monitor the effectiveness of these.

We request that you respond in writing to this letter by |4 May 2014 to inform us how you
will address the weaknesses in your underage gambling procedures shown by this test.
Please be aware that Brighton and Hove Council intend to conduct a re-test of your
gambling premises in the future, and should that test again show weaknesses, consideration
may be given to initiating a review of your premises “cence'Telephone: 01273 290000

www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

97



Yours sincerely,

Jim Whitelegg
Senior Environmental Health Officer
Environmental Health & Licensing

c.c. C A Heal & Sons Amusements Ltd, 4 KinaSquare, Bridgwater, Somerset, TA6 3YF
Andy Isaacs, Compliance Manager, Gambling Commission

If requested by a third party, under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the contents
of this letter may be disclosed by Brighton and Hove City Council. For further advice please contact (01273)
291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/foi.

98



%f /206“/)5//2 o

Regency Leisure Arcade
63-64 West Street

- &m&;\;;gwcu. Brighton

BRIGHTON . LCENSING East Sussex

ENV\RONMENTAL HEALTY Fast
DATE RECEWED RA

i 13" May 2014

| Your Ref: 2014/04154/GAPREM/EH

|

Regulatory Service
Public Health
Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square
Brighton

BN1 1JP

Email: jim.whiteleag@brighton-hove.qacsx.gov.uk
BY EMAIL AND POST

Dear Mr J Whitelegg,

Test Purchase carried out on Regency Leisure Arcade, 63-64 West Street, Brighton,

BN1 2RA.
Gambling Act 2005 - Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence: 2010/00017/GAAGCN

Operating Licence number: 000-001980-N-104069-004
Operating Licence holder: C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Ltd

We acknowledge receipt of your letter dated 1st May 2014 and are very disappointed to
learn we had recently failed a test purchase carried out on the above mentioned premises
on 25th April 2014 at 14:06.

As a company we take this momentary lack of vigilance extremely seriously and as a
result of this recent event have taken advice from Mr Phil Silver, a BACTA compliance
officer for the southern area. He has recommended the following:

o Further staff training which highlights the importance of ensuring no persons under
the age of 18 are permitted into the adult areas to participate in gambling.
* A random independent test purchase to ensure training has been effective.

In addition, please note our own internal arrangements:

e A staff meeting was called as soon as was practically possible to discuss the
findings of the test purchase to reiterate to all staff members the seriousness of this
incident and the potential consequences for them as employees, us as a company
and myself as a Company Director.

As mentioned, this is extremely disappointing and embarrassing for us to experience. We
have traded in West Street as an amusement arcade since 1981 and pride ourselves on
our professional relationships with our customers and our compliance and implementation
of BACTA policies.

99



However, we note and respect your findings and will do all we can to ensure this incident
is not repeated.

We therefore welcome a repeat test purchase as you have indicated; confident the
outcome will be different.

I look forward to hearing from you at your earliest possible convenience.

sy Hed.

Yours sincerely,

Charles Heal
Director

100



RESTRICTED — OPERATIONS /jpﬂgﬂg//,e -

Proforma - YP name.

Name of First Officer entering Dremises..mff)/g Aﬂﬁﬁ Vﬂ(}€ . ;8@0/(65
Name of Second Officer........ccceveneeeieniesnenneneens SALRAH CoRNVELL
Date..... 6/7 / O/ / Zf ...............................................................................
Time YP entered o

Premises............... / L., OG ..................................................................
Time YP exited o

premlses/lfc)f’l .......................................................................................
Name/address of premises/operator............ 64 : ) :
................................. REFIY. VCOk . LS SIEE, Br/ghta)

The YP should have been fully briefed by a responsible officer, including health and
safety, test methodology, and information on crediting and playing a gaming machine
(e.g. Category C for an AGC, which will be £70 prize, though some older models may
be £35 or £25 prize..... Category B2/B3 in betting premises, and the YP should be
encouraged to play at 25 pence stakes to reduce gambling exposure).

Young person’s report to responsible officer (as soon as test is complete):

Point of challenge (if any):

o I'was challenged when attempting to enter the premises
Description of circumstances e.g. I was asked for ID, I was asked not to

..............................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

e [ was allowed to access the premises unchallenged - but I was challenged at
some point between entering the premises and before I put money into a
machine
Description of circumstances e.g. I walked around for at least 60 seconds, in
open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID by staff, I was
asked to leave the premises, I was asked whether I had gambled yet

..............................................................................................................................
..............................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................

e Iwas allowed to access the premises unchallenged, and allowed to insert
money into a machine — but I was challenged while playing a machine
Description of circumstances e.g. I walked around for at least 60 seconds, in
open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID by staff while
playing the machine, I was asked to leave, I was asked how much I had spent
or how much ' I had won

..............................................................................................................................

101



[ ]

RESTRICTED - OPERATIONS

.............................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

I was allowed to access the premises unchallenged, and allowed to insert
money into a machine. I played the machine for around five to seven
minutes without being challenged. I then tried to leave the premises but was
challenged while trying to do so.

Description of circumstances e.g. I had walked around for at least 60 seconds,
in open view, before selecting a machine. I was asked for ID when trying to
leave premises, I was asked to leave, I was asked how much I had spent or
how much I had won

..............................................................................................................................
..............................................................................................................................

.......................................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................................

G pbile. and e L)

.........................

észﬁcam.md}'%ﬁ LG - 1D AGE st
100 ) QUrROF. MIACHIFE. 4

...............................

..............................

102



. ; Regulatory Services,
&l@l& %/9/95 ik L) Public Health

Bartholomew House

Brighton & Hove Bartholomew Square
City Council Brighton
BN1 1JP

C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Ltd. Date: 15 October 2014
4 King Square OurRef.  2014/04154/GAPREM/EH
Brigdwater
Somerset Phone: 01273 292100
TAG 3YF ' Email: mark.savage-brookes@brighton-

hove.gcsx.gov.uk

Dear Sir/Madam,

Gambling Act 2005 — Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences:
2010/00017/GAAGCN (Unit 1), 2010/00018/GAAGCN (Unit 2),
2010/00021/GAAGCN (Unit 3) & 2010/00022/GAAGCN (Unit 4)
Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-104069-005

Operating licence holder: C A Heal & Sons (Amusements) Limited
Re: Regency Arcade, 64 West Street, Brighton, BN1 2RA

We wrote to you on 1% May 2014 to inform you of a test purchase carried out at a
premises operated by you at 64 West Street, Brighton. In this letter we confirmed
that your staff failed to prevent a young person from entering the adult gaming centre
part of the premises and playing a gambling machine.

In the same letter we confirmed that we would conduct a re-test of the premises in
the future. This re-test was carried out on 9" October 2014.

A 16 year old male entered the betting premises at approximately 14:00 hours.
There were two visible members of staff on duty on the premises, one male behind
the cash desk and one other male walking around. In addition to the supervising
officer, there was one other customer in the adult gaming area. The young person
walked around the adult gaming area for a period before playing on two Category C
gambling machines. He exited the premises approximately seven minutes after
entering without being challenged for his age at any time.

As already confirmed in our previous letter, Section 47 of the Gambling Act provides
that a person commits an offence if they permit a child or young person to enter
premises where an adult gaming centre licence has effect. Further, Section 46 of
that Act states that a person commits an offence if they invite or permit a child or
young person to gamble. The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice also require
operators to have policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling, and
that operators must monitor the effectiveness of these.

Telephone: 01273 290000
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk

103



Due to this second failure to prevent a young person from entering the premises and
permitting him to gamble, | now write to confirm that we will be applying for a Review
of your Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licences.

Notice of our application for Review will be sent to you in the near future. If you wish
to discuss the contents of this letter with me, please contact me on the above contact
details.

Yours sincerely,

Mark Savage-Brookes
Licensing Officer
Environmental Health & Licensing

c.c. Regency Arcade, 64 West Street, Brighton, BN1 2RA (by hand)
Compliance Manager, Gambling Commission (via email)

If requested by a third party, under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the
contents of this letter may be disclosed by Brighton and Hove City Council. For further advice please
contact (01273) 291207 or search our website on www.brighton-hove.qgov.uk/foi.

104



' {pam 10.1 Goderof Prcmt 23, Pollce ]
EwdenceAc* 1934) et Ll 58

Ap/)md//i/ £

!
{ The Caution i
1 © “You.do not have to say anything, but it may 4
y harm your defence if'you-donot.mention when: i ;
f' qués'lloned,;somthingvmich youdaterrelyonin
| - court. Anvthina:you.da say may be. .given'in
£ evidence. " {para 10.4 Code of-Practice C, Folice .
_ and-Criminal Evidence Act 1964-a:a. ) A 1L g g
You are: nol under arrest'and: ‘you are not olwllgpd_, 5
- - to remain here. ; _
! ‘ B RS ‘Fwould remind: you that you.are-en i lgé!;t‘o legal . -
' rentesentallon P :
..._,_.._._..._......‘.a:-'- e S RN - ~— :

o"l,ioli% 15 {2

K?qz\/\cﬂ Coisan, lesest S
if\(ﬂ_d A ’“_\’.OC;- Nos
_____- v idse ok WMoz
2 38 anrle ;\3 —ad
sther  cdoasr oo o0
Sig~. % \"’L/u hrlaad

(‘Q?Sk b\\k\r\ :\)f’pa \’\c/\r ,(./1

105



laden A & (WU 01

ol C\g'_(‘\/ ij /\.:'( Lub.(f N
! )

BRI, 1 e ghass.

] .
- ?{Arfj neach e

\/\e»ﬁ' ‘}o O . I ﬁ.‘“,<_r

W\xjﬁ S)[ ‘./5_1;_ hrSﬂv\‘L.V

N i A s = N C_S./\\:-\_é'_’

- -
L —Fe./v\,v‘l A eSeo T Scw

i

b shm b lut B
(J: e Lo ij‘ T e 1

KL;J == 6[c;~r1/z» +'.5t\u-“l' -

jffw? ; (’L;_‘/ I l/xo\"fl

L@A}j cj(; ‘ILT"{LO ,

.‘;___—______,_._.--—'—'_—_—_-_‘—‘-—-——

106




APPENDIX B

Premises licence number: 2010/00017/GAAGCN

ADULT GAMING CENTRE PREMISES LICENCE

This licence is issued under section 164 of the Gambling Act 2005 by

Brighton and Hove City Council

Part |- Details of person to whom licence is issued

C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd.

of the following address:

4 King Square
Bridgwater
Somerset
TAG6 3YF

Who holds an operating licence which has been given the following operating licence
number by the Gambling Commission:

Gambling Commission Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-101181-001

Part 2 — Details of the premises in respect of which the licence is issued:

Facilities for gambling may be provided in accordance with this licence on the following premises:
Unit |

64 West Street

Brighton

BNI 2RA

Part 3 - Premises licence details

This licence comes into effect on:

14 January 2010
This licence is of unlimited duration

The following conditions have been attached to the licence by the issuing authority under section
169(1) of the Gambling Act 2005: None

Issued 14.01.10 [ /2

107



The following conditions, which would otherwise attach to the licence by virtue of regulations made
under section 168 of the Gambling Act 2005, have been excluded by the issuing authority under
section 169(1)(b) of that Act: None

A scale plan is attached as an annex to this licence

Signed on behalf of the issuing licensing authority

Q o

et
e .
. AR T1TIONS
ek | g

@ SoLid Weed
W T HAuD

i v Tob

AS EwSTNG

'

<

M~

7Y

9

> - ==

L ]

o
=
©
a
&
L
©
[~
o
2 -~
(4] g
g @
2 8
> «
i -

Issued 14.01.10 2/2

108



r ,cr"

h‘v\

Premises licence number: 2010/00018/GAAGCN

ADULT GAMING CENTRE PREMISES LICENCE

This licence is issued under section 164 of the Gambling Act 2005 by

Brighton and Hove City Council

Part |- Details of person to whom licence is issued

C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd.

of the following address:

4 King Square
Bridgwater
Somerset
TAG6 3YF

Who holds an operating licence which has been given the following operating licence
number by the Gambling Commission:

Gambling Commission Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-101181-001

Part 2 — Details of the premises in respect of which the licence is issued:

Facilities for gambling may be provided in accordance with this licence on the following premises:
Unit 2

64 West Street

Brighton

BNI 2RA

Part 3 - Premises licence details

This licence comes into effect on:

14" January 2010
This licence is of unlimited duration

The following conditions have been attached to the licence by the issuing authority under section
169(1) of the Gambling Act 2005: None

Issued 14.01.10 1 /2

109



The following conditions, which would otherwise attach to the licence by virtue of regulations made
under section |68 of the Gambling Act 2005, have been excluded by the issuing authority under
section 169(1)(b) of that Act: None

' A scale plan is attached as an annex to this licence

Signed on behalf of the issuing licensing authority

I S
e &5k . P
AR T1TIONS
l;')ﬁ&& _ rE
@ SoLid Wyod
T HAuD
Lk ow Tol .
AS EwxesTe@

BOYCES STAE&ET

[~
.
a.
&
(VS
©
c
=5
e —
(4] <t
2 8
b= b
(¥ 5] -
T
Issued 14.01.10 2/2

110



Fremises licence humber: 2010/00021/GAAGCN

ADULT GAMING CENTRE PREMISES LICENCE

This licence is issued under section 164 of the Gambling Act 2005 by

Brighton and Hove City Council

Part |- Details of person to whom licence is issued

C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd.

of the following address:

4 King Square
Bridgwater
Somerset
TAG6 3YF

Who holds an operating licence which has been given the following operating licence
number by the Gambling Commission:

Gambling Commission Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-101181-001

Part 2 - Details of the premises in respect of which the licence is issued:

Facilities for gambling may be provided in accordance with this licence on the following premises:
Unit 3

64 West Street

Brighton

BNI 2RA

Part 3 - Premises licence details

This licence comes into effect on:

14® January 2010
This licence is of unlimited duration

The following conditions have been attached to the licence by the issuing authority under section
169(1) of the Gambling Act 2005: None

lssued 14.01.10 172

111



The following conditions, which would otherwise attach to the licence by virtue of regulations made
under section |68 of the Gambling Act 2005, have been excluded by the issuing authority under
section 169(1)(b) of that Act: None

A scale plan is attached as an annex to this licence

Signed on behalf of the issuing licensing authority

ParTiTions
AQE
@ Sottd Weed
W T Hawd
Lhe ow Tol-
A& [ As EwxrsT@
i ©
4
&
4 Ae-C_
9
3 i e—
o
A
S
-
| 2
| (v
B
| g _
[ O <
g 9o
Wl v
g L. -
Ly LoEsT STREET
Issued 14.01.10 2/2

112




Premises licence number: 2010/00022/GAAGCN

ADULT GAMING CENTRE PREMISES LICENCE

This licence is issued under section 164 of the Gambling Act 2005 by

Brighton and Hove City Council

Part |- Details of person to whom licence is issued

C A Heal And Sons (Amusements) Ltd.

of the following address:

4 King Square
Bridgwater
Somerset
TAG6 3YF

Who holds an operating licence which has been given the following operating licence
number by the Gambling Commission:

Gambling Commission Operating licence number: 000-001980-N-101181-001

Part 2 — Details of the premises in respect of which the licence is issued:

Facilities for gambling may be provided in accordance with this licence on the following premises:
Unit 4

64 West Street

Brighton

BNI| 2RA

Part 3 — Premises licence details

This licence comes into effect on:

14" January 2010
This licence is of unlimited duration

The following conditions have been attached to the licence by the issuing authority under section
169(1) of the Gambling Act 2005: None

Issued 14.01.10 172

113



The following conditions, which would otherwise attach to the licence by virtue of regulations made
under section |68 of the Gambling Act 2005, have been excluded by the issuing authority under
section 169(1)(b) of that Act: None

A scale plan is attached as an annex to this licence

Signed on behalf of the issuing licensing authority

o
(X 53 " p
AR TITIONS
DK | AE
@ SoLid Lved
DT, HAuD
P e 0w Tob-
A&€ [ As EwxisTrel
g .
: ©,
<
L . v
“ Arec Lt
Q
§ e —
[~4
K.
<
2
fred
©
5
2 —-—
. (4] <€
l g ®©
ook 7 8
N J
Issued 14.01.10 212

114




Appendix C

L

GAMBLING
COMMISSION

e ——
Mr M Savage-Brookes RIGHTLN & WOVE 117 COUNGE
Environmental Health and Licansing FEERLTE I TGRS G
2™ Fioor Bartholomew Housa \TH HECEN
Bartholomew Sguara . .

Brighton 8 NDV |
BH1 1.JP

ERWE- L MERN

28 Movember 2094

Diear Mr Savage-Brookes,

Review of premises licences 2010001 TIGAAGCHN and 2009/ 554/GABOT:
representation submitted by responsible authority

This ropresentation i submitted to the Licensing Committes of Brighton and Howe City
Council by the Gambling Commission as a responsibile autharily under section 157 of the
Gambling Act 2005 (the Act), in accordance with section 200(5) of the Act, and in respect of
the reviews of the premises lloences hald by

& Metrobet Bookmakers Limited, 56 Boundary Road, Hove, BN3 5TD

¢+ C A Heal & Sons Amusements Limited, Regency Arcade, 64 Wesl Street,
Brighton, BN1 2RA

Tha reprasantation is made with reference to the third licensing objective al section 1(c) of
the Acl, specificalty the objective of “protecting children.....from bedng harmed ar explodsd by
gambding”; and to the Commission's codes of practics issued under section 24 of the Act,
specifically the social responesbility code provigion 3.2 conceming "access to gambling by
childran and young persoans,

The Gambding Commisson supported the test purchase oparations conducted by Brighton
angd Hove City Council on 25 April 2014 and 9 Dctober 2074, 1he lafter 1o re-test Beensees
whose underage gambling contreds had shown to be ineflective during the April cperation,

We were in attendance with the council on both days

The Commission ataches & high priosty to the prevenlion of underage gambsng. as il is ona
of the key licensing objectivas of tha Act thal children ara protected from being hasmad of
exploited by gambling: i is the responsibilty of gambding Brensess to manage the rsks to
this objective that thelr premises may present. Section 45 of the Act makes It an offence to
permit a child or young person to gamble, and saction 47 makes & an offence to permit a
ehife o young person to enter a batiing or adult gaming cenire premses

115



The Commission's Licenca Conditions and Codes of Practice (code provision 3 .2) require
belting and adult gaming centre ficansees o have policies and procedures in place o
prevent underage gambling, and lo monitor the effectiveness of these. Many gambling
operaiors provide the Commission with frequent, mbust evidence thal they ana monilaring
their conlrols, for example through the commissioning of independent test purchasing of thair
premises, However, the Cammission works with licensing authosiliss across England and
Wabss to conduct 1est purchasing among licensses who do nof provide it with such ewdence.
All of the betling, hingo and adult gaming centre licensses tesied on 25 April 2014 had been
wentified by the Comméssion and Bnghton and Howe council as thosa thal do not provide
suich evidence. Tes! purchasing s therefore one means by which the Cammission and
llcarsing authorities will measure thae affectivenass of leensees’ underage gambling

conirals, in the absence of adequate dala prowvided by licensses themaehes,

The results in Brghton and Hove are refleciive of the test purchase resulis from other pards
of Ergland and Wales, and the Commission encouwrages ragulatary action by licensing
auhorties where local gambling Beensess fa o marove their conlrols. The Commigsion's
prass notice published on 2 September 2014 warned all gambling Scensees that *_._.local
authortes are remending the operators that if they fail fo voluntarly deliver improvemeants, or
if their gambling premises fail & further test purchass, than they may be subjacl to a review
of thewr premises licence which coukd culminate in the impositon of sircler eence conditions
of the suspension of ravocation of thelr premises koence”

Tha Commission therefore suppaorts the reviews of thess premises ikences by Brighton and
Howve council in view of the weaknesses in underage gambling conlrals that were
demensirated al these gambling premisas in the April and October 1851 purchaze operations.

‘Yours sincerely

TS~

Matthew Hill
DCirector
Gambling Commission

116



Appendix D




118



	Agenda
	11 Application for Review of a Premises Licence- Under the Gambling Act 2005, Metrobet Bookmakers Ltd, 56 Boundary Road, Hove
	APPENDIX A METROBET
	APPENDIX B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D

	12 Application for Review of Premises Licences -Under the Gambling  Act 2005, Units 1 -4 Regency Arcade, 63-64 West  Street, Brighton
	APPENDIX A UNIT 1
	APPENDIX A UNIT 2
	APPENDIX A UNIT 3
	APPENDIX A UNIT 4
	APPENDIX B, Regency
	Appendix C- Regency.doc
	Appendix D - Regency.doc


